




December 11, 2025 AGENDA 1 

CITY OF PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Thursday December 11, 2025 

6:30 PM 

City Council Chambers - 9426 Main Street - Plymouth, CA 

In-person participation by the public is permitted. Alternatively, remote/electronic public participation is available 
in one of the following ways: 

City of Plymouth's City Council Zoom Meeting 
Meeting ID: 934 6752 9771 Passcode:884779 

Join via link: https://zoom.us/j/93467529771?pwd=nH0gyPbbcTIUrWPNitKFdgUhl5WoL2.1 

Members of the public not attending in-person may submit written comments prior to the meeting by emailing 
comments to the City Clerk at vmchenry@cityofplymouth.org before 3:30 PM on the day of the meeting. Emailed 
public comments will be distributed to the City Council and made part of the official record. 

Wendy Cranford, Mayor 
Don Nunn, Vice Mayor  Holger Hornisch, Council Member 
Wendy Bottomley, Council Member Deborah Dill, Council Member 

MISSION STATEMENT 
The City of Plymouth preserves our small-town atmosphere and provides fiscally 
responsible services that fulfill public needs while protecting their quality of life. 

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL:
• Roll Call
• Pledge of Allegiance

2. APPROVAL OF CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA OF DECEMBER 11, 2025

3. REGULAR MEETING PUBLIC COMMENT
Under provisions of the Government Code, citizens wishing to address the Council for any
matter not on the agenda may do so at this time. Please submit a completed Speaker
Submittal Form to the City Clerk. Comments are limited to three minutes or less and speakers
are requested to state their name and community of residence. For public comments on
agendized items, speakers will be called by the Mayor at the point on the agenda when the
item will be heard. The City Council is prohibited from materially discussing or acting on any
item not on the agenda unless it can be demonstrated to be of an emergency nature or an
urgent need to take immediate action arose after the posting of the agenda.

4. PRESENTATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS/APPOINTMENTS:

4.1      CONSIDERATION OF TWO PLANNING COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS

5. CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS:
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are to be considered routine by the City Council
and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed. There will be no separate discussion of
these items unless, before the City Council votes on the motion to adopt, members of the
Council, staff or the public request specific items to be removed from the Consent Calendar
for separate discussion and action.

5.1 CORRESPONDENCE 

5.2 APPROVE THE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 13, 2025 

https://zoom.us/j/93467529771?pwd=nH0gyPbbcTIUrWPNitKFdgUhl5WoL2.1
mailto:vmchenry@cityofplymouth.org


December 11, 2025 AGENDA 2 

5.3 APPROVE THE SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 19, 2025 

5.4 RECEIVE NOVEMBER WARRANT REGISTER 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS: NONE
7. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:

7.1 CONSIDERATION OF ACRA DISSOULUTION AND EXECUTION OF 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT LETTER 

7.2 TOWN HALL PLANNING FOR PUBLIC FEEDBACK ON THE IONE 
BAND OF MIWOK INDIANS’ CASINO PROJECT 

7.3 APPROVAL OF AUDITOR SERVICES FOR OUTSTANDING 
FINANCIAL AUDITS FOR FY 2021 TO FY 2025 

7.4 UPDATE EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK AND MUNICIPAL CODE 
REVISIONS – DIRECTION FOR FUTURE COUNCIL 
CONSIDERATION 

7.5 AUTHORIZATION TO CONTINUE BULK WATER SUPPLY FOR 
MOOREFIELD CONSTRUCTION FOR THE ACORN RIDGE CASINO 
PROJECT 

7.6 REPORT ON ENCROACHMENT PERMIT ACTIVITY RELATED TO 
MOOREFIELD CONSTRUCTION AND THE ACORN RIDGE CASINO 
PROJECT 

7.7 RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD FOR ZINFANDEL SERVICES 
DISTRICT – DITCH REPAIR PROJECT 

7.8 CITY COUNCIL REORGANIZATION – SELECTION OF MAYOR AND 
VICE MAYOR 

8. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT
9. MAYOR & COUNCIL MEMBERS’ REPORTS AND COUNCIL REQUESTS FOR FUTURE

AGENDA ITEMS:
10. CLOSED SESSION:

10.1 LIABILITY CLAIMS: ONE CLAIM

CLAIM BY OUTFRONT MEDIA, LLC AGAINST THE CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
11. ADJOURNMENT

LEVINE ACT PUBLIC PARTY/APPLICANT DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS:

Applicants, parties, and their agents who have made campaign contributions totaling more than
$500 (aggregated) to a Council Member over the past 12 months, must publicly disclose that fact
for the official record of that agenda item. Disclosures must include the amount of the campaign
contribution aggregated, and the name(s) of the campaign contributor(s) and Council Member(s).
The disclosure may be made either in writing to the City Clerk prior to the agenda item consideration,
or by verbal disclosure at the time of the agenda item consideration.
The foregoing statements do not constitute legal advice, nor a recitation of all legal requirements
and obligations of parties/applicants and their agents. Parties and agents are urged to consult with
their own legal counsel regarding the requirements of the law.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Public documents related to an item on the open session portion of this agenda, which are distributed



December 11, 2025 AGENDA 3 

to the City Council less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, shall be available for public inspection 
at the City Clerk’s office located in Plymouth City Hall and at the time of the meeting. Persons 
interested in proposing an item for the City Council Agenda should contact a member of the City 
Council, or the City Manager. 

NOTICE: 

As presiding officer for this meeting, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council 
meetings, to remove or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disruptive 
conduct, and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need a disability-related modification 
or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to participate in this meeting, please contact 
the City Clerk’s Office at (209) 245-6941 prior to the meeting. 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING OF AGENDA 
I, Victoria McHenry, City Clerk for the City of Plymouth, declare that the foregoing agenda for 
December 11, 2025, Regular Meeting of the Plymouth City Council was posted and available for 
review on December 8, 2025, at the City Hall of the City of Plymouth, 9426 Main Street, Plymouth, 
California, 95669. The agenda is also available on the city website at cityofplymouth.org. 

Signed at Plymouth, California 
//s// 
Victoria McHenry City Clerk 









 
 
4 

PRESENTATIONS 
PROCLAMATIONS  
APPOINTMENTS  

 
 
 
 





4.1 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.1 
12/11/2025 

SUBJECT:  Planning Commission Appointments – Council Member Bottomley 
and Council Member Dill 

DEPARTMENT: City Manager’s Office 

STAFF:  Interim City Manager Cameron Begbie 

TITLE 

CONSIDERATION OF TWO PLANNING COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS 

BACKGROUND 

The City of Plymouth Planning Commission is composed of five members, all of whom 
must be residents of the City pursuant to PMC § 2.60.010, with each commissioner 
appointed by an individual City Council member under PMC § 2.60.020. At this time, 
two vacancies exist on the Commission, corresponding to the appointment authority 
of Council Member Bottomley and Council Member Dill. Council Member Bottomley 
has recommended the appointment of Micah Malcolm, who meets all eligibility 
requirements set forth in the municipal code. Council Member Dill has recommended 
Ilse “Micki” East, who likewise satisfies the requirements of PMC § 2.60.010. In both 
cases, the recommended appointees are qualified residents of the City and their 
terms, upon confirmation, will be co-extensive with the terms of the respective 
Council Members making the appointments. These recommendations are therefore 
consistent with the standards and procedures established by the City’s Planning 
Commission ordinance. 

Both candidates have been spoken to and understand the commitment required for 
the Planning Commission. No other interest has been shown from members of the 
community in the form of letters, email correspondence, or verbally. Notice of 
Planning Commission vacancy seeking letters of interest was posted on the City’s 
website, bulletin board, post office, library, and social media. 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION 

This action involves only the appointment of public officials and therefore does not 
constitute a project under CEQA or NEPA, requiring no further environmental review 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.1 
12/11/2025 

FISCAL IMPACT 

There is no fiscal impact. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the City Council discuss and possibly appoint the candidates to the 
Planning Commission. 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

1. None



5.1 
CORRESPONDENCE 





5.2 













5.3 









5.4 





























 

 
7.1 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.1 
12/11/2025 

SUBJECT:  Authorization to Acknowledge Dissolution of the Amador County 
Recreation Agency (ACRA) 

DEPARTMENT: City Manager’s Office 

STAFF:  Interim City Manager Cameron Begbie 

TITLE 

CONSIDERATION OF ACRA DISSOLUTION AND EXECUTION OF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
LETTER 

BACKGROUND 

The Amador County Recreation Agency (ACRA) has formally notified its member 
jurisdictions of its intent to dissolve and cease operations. Over the past several 
months, ACRA has been evaluating its financial and organizational capacity and has 
determined that dissolution is the most appropriate course of action. As part of the 
winding-down process, ACRA is requesting confirmation from each member agency 
regarding whether they have any objection to the dissolution. 

Historically, the City of Plymouth has not been obligated to contribute mitigation fees 
to ACRA and has chosen not to participate financially in that component of the 
agency’s funding structure. As a result, the City is not entitled to receive any 
redistribution of remaining funds or assets at the conclusion of ACRA’s dissolution. 
ACRA has indicated that any remaining financial resources will be used to satisfy 
outstanding obligations incurred through the close of operations. 

ACRA is requesting that its member agencies remain in place during the final stages 
of the dissolution process to facilitate an orderly wind-down of agency business. This 
includes completing final administrative, financial, and legal tasks necessary to 
formally terminate the agency. 

Amador County Counsel has indicated that it may prepare a formal letter for each 
member entity to sign, acknowledging ACRA’s dissolution and confirming that the 
entity has no objection to the agency’s termination. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.1 
12/11/2025 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION 

No actions proposed in this report constitute a project under CEQA or NEPA; 
therefore, no environmental review is required at this time. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

There is no fiscal impact to the City of Plymouth. The City has not historically 
contributed mitigation fees to ACRA and will not receive any distribution as part of 
the dissolution process. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council formally acknowledge ACRA’s intention to 
dissolve, indicate that the City of Plymouth has no objection to ACRA proceeding with 
its dissolution process, and authorize the City Manager to sign the letter 
acknowledging ACRA’s dissolution. 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

1. Email Correspondence from County Counsel
2. JPA - ACRA Agreements



From: Cameron Begbie
To: Victoria McHenry
Subject: Fw: Termination of JPA/Dissolution of ACRA
Date: Thursday, December 4, 2025 3:14:02 PM
Attachments: ACRA 3rd Amendment.2018.pdf

This MOU and email are going to be a part of my ACRA agenda item attachments. Just getting it
to you since I had it opened.

From: Greg Gillott <GGillott@amadorcounty.gov>
Sent: Thursday, December 4, 2025 2:30 PM
To: Chuck Iley <CIley@amadorcounty.gov>; csimpson@ci.jackson.ca.us
<csimpson@ci.jackson.ca.us>; tdubois@cityofsuttercreek.org <tdubois@cityofsuttercreek.org>;
Cameron Begbie <CBegbie@cityofplymouth.org>; sandy.staples@amador-city.com
<sandy.staples@amador-city.com>; jcritchfield@acusd.org <jcritchfield@acusd.org>
Cc: Margaret Friedman <mfriedman@amadorcounty.gov>
Subject: Termination of JPA/Dissolution of ACRA

Hello Everyone:

I wanted to send out another email related to ACRA because there have been a few
questions related to the process for dissolution of ACRA.  Article 8 and section 10.2 of
the ACRA MOU (attached) address termination.  They both basically say the same thing,
which is that once a majority of the members terminate their participation, ACRA will no
longer exist.  There were 7 members, but Ione has already withdrawn.  So, once 3
additional members withdraw, that would be it.  Although, what is a little odd is that
section 10.2 requires 60-days-notice, which is what Ione did, but that seems
unnecessary since all the remaining agencies are in agreement. And each agency's
withdrawal does not necessarily dissolve ACRA, which only would occur after a majority
of the members do so.

In thinking about the best approach, there probably should be an agreement between all
the remaining 6 members formally terminating the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement
and dissolving ACRA.  That way, the dissolution, and its timing would be very clear and
definitive and we'd not have worry about counting how many members have terminated
their participation.

Please let me know if you agree that doing a termination/dissolution agreement would
be the preferred approach.  If so, I will prepare and circulate a draft next week.  Once the
form of that dissolution agreement is finalized, it could then be approved by your
respective councils/boards.  



Lastly, whether through an agreement or through having a majority terminate their
participation in the JPA, please remember that ACRA will need to continue to exist and
operate long enough to complete the winding up of all its affairs, and so the members
must remain long enough for that to take place.

Thanks,

Greg

_________________
Greg Gillott
Amador County Counsel
810 Court Street 
Jackson, CA 95642
(209) 223-6366 (reception)
(209) 223-6213 (direct)

**Please note that my email address has changed to ggillott@amadorcounty.gov as the
County transitions to a ".gov" domain.  All email sent to ggillott@amadorgov.org will
continue to be received.























7.2 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.2 
12/11/2025 

SUBJECT:  Community Engagement Regarding the Ione Band of Miwok 
Indians Casino Project 

DEPARTMENT: City Manager’s Office 

STAFF:  Interim City Manager Cameron Begbie 

TITLE 

TOWN HALL PLANNING FOR PUBLIC FEEDBACK ON THE IONE BAND OF MIWOK INDIANS 
CASINO PROJECT

BACKGROUND 

The City of Plymouth has previously engaged its residents regarding the proposed 
casino project by the Ione Band of Miwok Indians. The last formal community survey 
on this topic was conducted more than twenty years ago. Since that time, community 
demographics, local and regional economic conditions, and public priorities have 
evolved significantly. With renewed public interest and inquiries from residents, it is 
appropriate for the City to re-engage the community to understand current 
viewpoints and ensure that the City Council’s decision-making reflects the 
community’s present interests and values. 

Given the amount of time that has passed since the last formal survey, City staff 
believes it is important to provide residents with updated information and an 
opportunity to share their thoughts in a structured and transparent forum. 
Community engagement remains a vital component of effective local governance, 
and gathering updated feedback will support the Council in evaluating the City’s policy 
direction, priorities, and potential partnerships related to the casino project. 

A Town Hall Meeting would allow: 
-Present factual updates regarding the history and status of the Ione Band of Miwok
Indians casino project.
-Share information about projected impacts, including potential economic,
environmental, and public-service considerations.
-Offer residents an open forum to ask questions, express concerns, or share support
for the project.



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.2 
12/11/2025 

-Strengthen trust, transparency, and collaboration between the City and the
community.

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION 

No actions proposed in this report constitute a project under CEQA or NEPA; 
therefore, no environmental review is required at this time. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Fisal impacts are minimal but include the cost of staff time. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council select a date for and direct staff to organize 
a Town Hall meeting to provide residents with updated information on the casino 
project and to gather current community feedback. 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

None 



7.3 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.3 
12/11/2025 

SUBJECT:  Authorization to Engage Moss, Levy, & Hartzheim, LLP for 
Completion of FY 21/22, FY 22/23, FY 23/24, and FY 24/25 
Financial Audits 

DEPARTMENT: City Manager’s Office 

STAFF:  Interim City Manager Cameron Begbie 

TITLE 

APPROVAL OF AUDITOR SERVICES FOR OUTSTANDING FINANCIAL AUDITS FOR FY 2021 
TO FY 2025. 

BACKGROUND 

On April 13, 2023, the City Council approved a letter of engagement with The Pun 
Group to complete the City of Plymouth’s FY 2021/2022 financial audit for a 
contracted amount of $35,000; however, that audit has not been completed. Over 
the past several years, the City has faced a range of financial management challenges 
that contributed to this delay, including significant staff turnover, incomplete 
reconciliations associated with the transition to a new financial system, unfinished 
bank reconciliations, and the absence of adequate prior audit documentation. Staff 
also encountered difficulty locating records necessary to verify past financial 
transactions, along with numerous incorrectly posted entries and broader issues 
related to fiscal organization. Although these issues created substantial obstacles, 
the City has made considerable progress toward audit readiness through the 
combined efforts of former accountant Ms. Leon, contracted support from 3E Business 
Solutions, and ongoing work by the City’s newly hired staff accountant. Contracted 
Finance Director Andy Heath has since evaluated the City’s needs and recommended 
engaging Moss, Levy, & Hartzheim, LLP, a firm experienced in municipal audits, to 
complete the still-outstanding FY 2021/2022 audit and restore compliance with 
required financial reporting standards. 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION 

No actions proposed in this report constitute a project under CEQA or NEPA; 
therefore, no environmental review is required at this time. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.3 
12/11/2025 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The following provide the fiscal impact for the outstanding fiscal year audits: 
FY 2021: $25,000 
FY 2022: $25,750 
FY 2023: $26,523 
FY 2024: $27,318 
FY 2025: $28,138 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the City Manager to engage Moss, 
Levy, & Hartzheim, LLP to complete all outstanding financial audits from FY 2021 
through FY 2025 and execute any necessary documents to begin the work. 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

1. April 13, 2023 Staff Report and Engagement Letter for The Pun Group
2. Audit Cost Work Proposal Form from Moss, Levy, & Hartzheim, LLP





























CITY OF PLYMOUTH 

COST PROPOSAL FOR PROFESSIONAL AUDITING SERVICES 

For the Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2021, 2022, 2023, 2024 and 2025 
========= 

Submitted By: 
Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, LLP 
5800 Hannum Avenue, Suite E 
Culver City, California 90230 
Phone: (310) 670-2745 
Fax: (310) 670-1689 
CA License No. 6998 
Email: bzeng@mlhcpas.com 
Website: www.mlhcpas.com 
Submitted On: 
November 30, 2025 
Contact Person: 
Craig A. Hartzheim, CPA: Partner 
Hadley Y. Hui, CPA: Partner 
Wilson Lam, CPA, CFE, CGFM: Partner 
Bin Zeng: Principal 



2 

AUDIT COST WORK PROPOSAL FORM 

I, the undersigned, certify I am duly authorized to represent the above-named firm and am empowered to submit this 
bid. In addition, I certify I am authorized to contract with the City of Plymouth on behalf of the above-named firm. 

Bin Zeng Principal November 30, 2025 
Name Title Date 

Signature 

TOTAL ALL-INCLUSIVE MAXIMUM PRICE 

Our firm is always willing to perform additional work, as long it does not impede our independence as the City’s 
Auditors. No work will be performed without the Authority’s approval. 

MANNER OF PAYMENT 

Progress payments will be made on the basis of hours of work completed during the course of the engagement and 
out-of-pocket expenses incurred in accordance with the firm’s proposal. Interim billings shall cover a period of not 
less than one calendar month. 

Name of Firm: Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, LLP
Address: 5800 Hannum Avenue, Suite E
City, State, Zip: Culver City, CA 90230
Contact Name: Bin Zeng, Principal
Contact Telephone Number: (310) 670-2745
Contact Email Address: bzeng@mlhcpas.com

FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025
Total Price Total Price Total Price Total Price Total Price

Audit including Single Audit 25,000$        25,750$        26,523$        27,318$        28,138$        
Total Maximum All-Inclusive Price 25,000$      25,750$      26,523$      27,318$      28,138$      





7.4 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.4 
12/11/2025 

SUBJECT:  Review of Updated Employee Handbook and Municipal Code § 
2.08.090 

DEPARTMENT: City Manager’s Office 

STAFF:  Interim City Manager Cameron Begbie 

TITLE 

UPDATE EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK AND MUNICIPAL CODE REVISIONS – DIRECTION FOR 
FUTURE COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 

BACKGROUND 

The City’s Employee Handbook and Municipal Code § 2.08.090 serve as foundational 
documents governing personnel policy, employee conduct, disciplinary procedures, 
and general employment standards. Over time, both documents had become 
outdated, inconsistent, and in some instances unclear, leading to confusion in the 
administration of staff matters. Several provisions did not reflect current laws, best 
practices, or operational procedures. 
During recent personnel reviews and administrative matters, City management 
identified areas where the Handbook and Municipal Code lacked clarity or conflicted 
with each other. These inconsistencies created challenges in ensuring transparent, 
fair, and legally compliant personnel management. 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION 

This action does not constitute a project under CEQA or NEPA and is therefore not 
subject to environmental review. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The fiscal impact is limited to existing staff time required to implement the updated 
policies. 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the City Council review the updated Employee Handbook and 
proposed amendments to Municipal Code § 2.08.090 and provide direction for these 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.4 
12/11/2025 

items to be brought back for discussion and consideration at a future regular City 
Council meeting. 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

1. Updated City of Plymouth Employee Handbook
2. Update City of Plymouth Municipal Code § 2.08.090 Authority over employees.



CITY OF PLYMOUTH 

PERSONNEL MANUAL

CC Adopted: DRAFT COPY 



PREFACE 

This manual is meant to serve as a useful reference document throughout your employment with 
the City of Plymouth (hereafter referred to as the “City”). However, it is not intended to be a 
contract (express or implied), nor is it intended to otherwise create any legally enforceable 
obligations on the part of the City or its employees. Your employment with the City is at-will and 
can be terminated at any time for any lawful reason.  This manual supersedes and replaces all 
previous personnel policies, practices, and guidelines. 

To obtain more information regarding specific employment policies or procedures, whether or not 
they are referred to in this manual, contact Human Resources. As the City is a growing and 
changing organization, it reserves full discretion to add to, modify, or delete provisions of this 
manual, or the policies or procedures upon which it is based, at any time, with or without prior 
notice. Only the Plymouth City Council has the authority to enter into an employment or other 
agreement that modifies the City policy. Any such modification must be in writing. 

This manual is the property of the City and is intended for your personal use and reference as an 
employee of the City. Although the City attempted to be comprehensive in the matters covered by 
this manual, no manual, including this one, can be all-inclusive and anticipate all circumstances. 
Whether an employment-related matter is or is not covered in this Personnel Manual, the City 
reserves the right to address the matter in the manner the City, in its sole discretion, deems most 
appropriate. 

Following review and study of this manual, please sign the employee acknowledgment form at the 
back of this manual, and return it to Human Resources. This will provide the City with a record 
that you read and received the manual. 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

-i-

TOC TO BE UPDATED ONCE CHANGES ACCEPTED AND FINAL VERSION 
GENERATED 

SECTION 1. THE SELECTION PROCESS ......................................................................... 1 
1.01 Recruitment ............................................................................................................ 1 
1.02 Employment Applications/Requirements .............................................................. 1 
1.03 Employment Reference/Background Checks ........................................................ 1 
1.04 Immigration Law Compliance and Verification of Status ..................................... 1 
1.05 Offer of Position .................................................................................................... 1 

SECTION 2. EMPLOYMENT BASICS ............................................................................... 2 
2.01 Open Door Policy .................................................................................................. 2 
2.02 Equal Employment Opportunity ............................................................................ 2 
2.03 Employment of Relatives ....................................................................................... 3 
2.04 At-Will Employment ............................................................................................. 3 
2.05 Drug and Alcohol Policy ....................................................................................... 3 
2.06 Harassment and Discrimination Prevention Policy ............................................... 4 
2.07 Incompatible Conduct ............................................................................................ 7 
2.08 Outside Employment ............................................................................................. 8 
2.09 Use of Computers, E-mail, Voicemail and the Internet ......................................... 8 

SECTION 3. PERSONNEL ................................................................................................ 10 
3.01 Personnel Information .......................................................................................... 10 
3.02 Personnel File Information .................................................................................. 10 
3.03 Performance Evaluation ....................................................................................... 10 
3.04 Classification and Categories of Employment ..................................................... 11 
3.05 Promotions and Transfers .................................................................................... 12 
3.06 Garnishment of Wages ......................................................................................... 13 
3.07 Leave of Absence ................................................................................................. 13 
3.08 Severance Pay ...................................................................................................... 18 
3.09 Vacation ............................................................................................................... 18 
3.10 Holidays ............................................................................................................... 19 
3.11 Regular Sick Leave (Full Time Employees) ........................................................ 20 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(continued) 

Page 

-ii-

SECTION 4. HOURS AND PAY ....................................................................................... 22 
4.01 Work Week .......................................................................................................... 22 
4.02 Timekeeping and Overtime.................................................................................. 22 
4.03 Compensatory Time Off (CTO)........................................................................... 23 
4.04 Wage and Salary Administration ......................................................................... 24 
4.05 Payday .................................................................................................................. 24 
4.06 Compensation Philosophy ................................................................................... 24 
4.07 Stand-by Duty ...................................................................................................... 25 

SECTION 5. BENEFITS ..................................................................................................... 25 
5.01 Benefits Eligibility ............................................................................................... 25 
5.02 Worker’s Compensation Insurance ...................................................................... 26 
5.03 State Disability Insurance .................................................................................... 26 

SECTION 6. EMPLOYEE REQUIREMENTS .................................................................. 26 
6.01 Employee Conduct and Work Rules .................................................................... 26 
6.02 Disciplinary Procedures ....................................................................................... 28 
6.03 Administrative Leave ........................................................................................... 28 
6.04 Grievance Procedures .......................................................................................... 28 
6.05 Attendance and Punctuality ................................................................................. 29 
6.06 Safety ................................................................................................................... 30 
6.07 Dress Standards .................................................................................................... 30 
6.08 Telephone Usage .................................................................................................. 31 
6.09 Smoking ............................................................................................................... 31 
6.10 Conflict of Interest ............................................................................................... 31 
6.11 Proprietary and Confidential Information ............................................................ 32 
6.12 Use of City Equipment and Vehicles ................................................................... 32 
6.13 Changes In Employee’s Personal Information .................................................... 33 

SECTION 7. GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES ............................................... 33 
7.01 Mileage Reimbursement ...................................................................................... 33 
7.02 Expense Reimbursement ...................................................................................... 33 
7.03 Personal Property ................................................................................................. 34 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(continued) 

Page 

-iii-

7.04 Media Contact ...................................................................................................... 34 
7.05 Credit Card(s) and Credit Accounts ..................................................................... 34 

SECTION 8. SEPARATIONS ............................................................................................ 34 
8.01 Separations from Employment ............................................................................ 34 
8.02 Return of City Property ........................................................................................ 34 
8.03 Exit Interview....................................................................................................... 34 



1 

SECTION 1. THE SELECTION PROCESS 

1.01  Recruitment 

The City Manager or designee will prepare a job announcement to announce a proposed 
recruitment.  The announcement may be posted on the City’s website and other locations the City 
Manager or designee deems appropriate, depending on whether the recruitment is open to the 
public or for current employees only.  The City Manager has discretion to determine the type of 
recruitment, the final filing deadline, and the selection processes to be used .  Employment searches 
for all open positions within the City are coordinated through City Hall. 

The selection processes to be used on recruitments may include written or oral tests, interviews, 
practical exercises, or any combination thereof.  The content of all selection processes will be job-
related and designed to test knowledge, skills, or abilities that help predict successful completion 
of job duties.  Any interview with candidates may be conducted by the City Manager or by an 
individual or panel designated by the City Manager.  

The City Manager or designee will make the final appointment of all City employees (except those 
that report to the City Council).  The City Manager or designee has discretion to decide in what 
manner a vacancy is filled.  Vacancies may be filled by hire, reinstatement, promotion, transfer, 
demotion, or appointment of a temporary employee.   

1.02  Employment Applications/Requirements 

The City relies upon the accuracy of information contained in the employment application, as well 
as the accuracy of other data presented by applicants throughout the hiring process. Any 
misrepresentations, falsifications, or material omissions in any of this information may result in 
the disqualification of an applicant from further consideration for employment or in the termination 
of employment of a current employee. 

1.03  Employment Reference/Background Checks 

As part of the recruitment/selection process, the City’s practice is to check the employment 
references of candidates who apply for position(s).  

1.04  Immigration Law Compliance and Verification of Status 

The City is required by federal law to verify the identity and legal ability to work from all 
individuals hired by the City. In keeping with this obligation, each applicant must also attest to the 
employee’s legal authority to work and identity on a I-9 Form provided by the Federal 
Government.  Further, documentation that shows each person’s identity and legal authority to work 
must be inspected and verified by the City as soon as possible after an offer of employment is 
made and, in no event, more than three (3) business days after an individual is hired. All offers of 
employment and continued employment for positions in the United States are conditioned on 
furnishing satisfactory evidence of identity and legal authority to work in the United States. 



2 

1.05  Offer of Position 

All offers of employment are made by the City Manager or designee. Offers are made contingent 
upon the applicant passing (a) a pre-employment medical examination indicating that the applicant 
is fit for duty and can perform the essential functions of the job position with or without reasonable 
accommodation, (b) a criminal background check, and (c) (where applicable) a pre-employment 
drug and alcohol screening test.  All employees whose positions are designated as safety-sensitive 
are required to submit to pre-employment drug and alcohol screening.  Safety sensitive status is 
identified in the applicable job description and in the job posting/announcement.   

An offer of employment is not meant to create, and does not create, an employment contract 
between an employee and the City.  

SECTION 2. EMPLOYMENT BASICS 

2.01  Open Door Policy 

Open communication functions best in an atmosphere of trust. In such an environment, most 
problems can be readily solved and do not evolve into serious conflicts. The City is committed to 
responding effectively to employee concerns. Experience has shown that when employees deal 
openly and directly with their supervisors, the work environment can be excellent. 

Employees are encouraged to see their immediate supervisor with questions or problems relating 
to their jobs or interactions. Because one supervisor may not always be an appropriate outlet for 
communication, the City believes that it is important to provide its employees with other avenues 
of communication. If, for any reason, employees find speaking to their own supervisor is difficult 
or unacceptable, they may address their concerns to the City Manager. 

Please remember to not internalize a problem! Because no solution is possible without candid 
discussion, employees are encouraged to speak out and are assured that they may use the City’s 
open door policy without fear of reprisal. 

2.02  Equal Employment Opportunity 

It is the policy of the City to afford equal employment opportunity to all qualified individuals 
regardless of race, color, religious creed, sex, pregnancy, childbirth or related medical condition, 
gender, national origin, ancestry, citizenship, age, marital status, gender identity, gender 
expression, sexual orientation, physical or mental disabilities, medical condition, genetic 
characteristics, veteran or military status, or any other characteristic (or combination thereof) 
protected by federal, state, or local law. This policy of non-discrimination applies to all 
employment practices, including recruitment, hiring, compensation, benefits, promotion, training, 
transfer, discipline, layoff, recall, termination, and the like. Equal employment opportunity is not 
only the law, but is an integral part of the City’s philosophy.  

The City is committed to providing a work environment that is free from discrimination. In keeping 
with its commitment, the City maintains a strict policy prohibiting unlawful harassment, including 
sexual harassment, on the basis of any of the aforementioned protected classes. 



3 

If you have any questions regarding this policy or if you have any concerns about workplace 
discrimination, please immediately direct your questions or concerns to Human Resources. A 
complaint procedure is also addressed in the Harassment and Discrimination Prevention Policy. 
The City will not retaliate against any employee who raises concerns in good faith. Anyone found 
to be engaging in any type of unlawful discrimination will be subject to disciplinary action, up to 
and including termination of employment. 

2.03 Workplace Accommodation 

The City is committed to complying with all laws protecting qualified individuals with disabilities, 
as well as employees’ religious beliefs and observances. This policy extends to all aspects of our 
employment practices, including but not limited to, recruiting, hiring, discipline, termination, 
promotions, transfers, compensation, benefits, training, leaves of absence, and other terms and 
conditions of employment. The City will make reasonable accommodations for qualified 
individuals with disabilities and for employees who have sincerely held religious beliefs , unless 
doing so would result in an undue hardship or pose a direct threat to health or safety.  

If you require an accommodation to perform the essential functions of your job and/or for your 
religious beliefs or observances, notify Human Resources. Once the City is aware of the need for 
an accommodation, the City will engage in an interactive process with you to identify possible 
accommodations.  As part of this process, you may be asked to provide supporting information 
supporting your eligibility and need (including medical documentation of any disability).  Where 
applicable, medical information is kept in a confidential medical information file and shared only 
on a need-to-know basis.   

While the City welcomes your suggestions for accommodations to enable you to perform the 
essential functions of your job, the City will make the final decision regarding whether it can 
provide a reasonable accommodation and, if so, which accommodation to provide in accordance 
with its legal obligation. 

2.03  Employment of Relatives 

The following describes the City’s policy with regard to the hiring, ongoing employment, or 
contracting of people who have a familial relationship to a member of the City Council, the City 
Manager or any City employee. This applies to all full-time and part-time employees of the City. 

No one will be assigned to the role of an immediate supervisor/subordinate relationship where the 
supervisor and subordinate employee have a potential employment conflict of interest due to a 
parental, spousal, romantic, business, or sibling relationship. The City reserves the discretion and 
the right to transfer either or both the supervisor or subordinate employee to eliminate such a 
conflict, or, if such a transfer is not practicable, to terminate either’s employment. 

In addition, the City will reassign or prevent the management of any consultant or contractor’s 
work assignments by an employee who has a parental, spousal, romantic, business, or sibling 
relationship to said consultant or contractors. 



4 

2.04  At-Will Employment 

Employment with the City is at-will. Either the employee or the City can terminate the 
employment relationship at any time, with or without cause and with or without prior notice. All 
employer decisions, including but not limited to demotion, promotion, pay rate, employment 
status, disciplinary action, and the like, are also at will, meaning these decisions are made in the 
sole discretion of the City. Other than the City Manager, as authorized by vote of the City Council, 
no employee or City representative has any authority to enter into an agreement (which must be in 
writing) to employ any person other than on an at-will basis or for any specified period of time.  

Any separate, individual, or written employment contract with the City must be approved by the 
City Council. 

2.05  Drug and Alcohol Policy 

It is the responsibility of the City to maintain a safe and effective working environment. Employees 
who work while under the influence of drugs or alcohol present a safety hazard to themselves, 
their co-workers, and the public. Moreover, the presence of drugs and alcohol in the workplace 
limits the ability to produce high quality work. Employees with alcohol or drug dependencies are 
encouraged to seek assistance. 

The following conduct is considered unacceptable behavior: 

• Use, possession, manufacture, distribution, transfer, sale or solicitation of illegal drugs on
City property, including City vehicles, or while conducting City business;

• Use or possession of alcohol on City property, including City vehicles;

• Reporting to work or conducting City business under the influence of alcohol or drugs
(including prescription drugs) which are unlawful or which may impair the employee’s
ability to function properly.

The City will conduct drug testing of employees under the following circumstances: 

(1) Pre-employment.  All initial offers of employment for positions with the City for
those who occupy safety sensitive positions will be made contingent upon
satisfactory completion by the applicant of a pre-employment drug and alcohol
screen (bodily fluid testing).  Positive test results shall not bar reapplication at a
later time.  If an employee refuses or fails to cooperate with the administration of
the drug and alcohol test, the refusal will be handled in the same manner as a
positive test result.

(2) For Cause Testing.  If the City has a reasonable suspicion that an employee is (1)
intoxicated or under the influence of drugs or alcohol, or (2) is under the influence
of drugs or alcohol during working time, the employee may be directed to



5 

undergo drug and/or alcohol testing at an independent licensed laboratory to 
determine whether a violation of this policy has occurred. 

“Reasonable suspicion” includes: a suspicion that is based on specific personal 
observations such as an employee’s manner, disposition, muscular movement, 
appearance, behavior, speech or breath odor; information provided to 
management by an employee, by law enforcement officials, by a security service, 
or by other persons believed to be reliable; or a suspicion that is based on other 
reliable surrounding circumstances. 

“Reasonable suspicion” may be based upon: evidence of illegal substances or 
alcohol on or about the employee’s person or in the employee’s immediate 
vicinity; a pattern of unusual conduct or erratic behavior on the employee’s part 
that suggests impairment or influence of illegal substances or alcohol; any 
physical circumstances that suggest impairment or influence of illegal substances 
or alcohol; arrest or conviction of a drug-related offense or the identification of 
the employee as the focus of a criminal investigation involving illegal substances; 
information provided by a reliable and credible source that the employee is under 
the influence of illegal substance or alcohol; evidence that the employee has 
tampered with a previous drug test. 

If an employee refuses or fails to cooperate with the administration of the drug 
and alcohol test, the refusal will be handled in the same manner as a positive test 
result. 

Counseling/Employee Assistance.  Employees who suspect they may have alcohol or drug 
problems, even in the early stages, are encouraged voluntarily to seek diagnosis and to follow 
through with the treatment as prescribed by qualified professionals.  Employees who wish to 
voluntarily enter and participate in an approved alcohol or drug rehabilitation program are 
encouraged to contact the City Manager, who will determine whether the City can accommodate 
the employee by providing leave for the time necessary to complete participation in the program.  
The City abides by all applicable laws and regulations regarding providing leaves of absence to 
employees who are addicted to drugs.  Employees should be aware that participation in a 
rehabilitation program will not necessarily shield them from disciplinary action for a violation of 
this policy, particularly if discipline is imposed for a violation occurring before the employee 
seeks assistance.  The time to request assistance is before any misconduct or violation of policy 
occurs, as the City is not obligated to overlook or ignore any policy violations. 

Accommodations.  Nothing in this Policy is intended to diminish the City’s commitment to 
employ and reasonably accommodate qualified disabled individuals.  The City will reasonably 
accommodate qualified disabled employees who must take legal drugs because of their disability 
and who, because of their appropriate use of such drugs, cannot perform the essential functions 
of their positions without reasonable accommodation.  In addition, the City will provide a leave 
of absence to eligible employees who wish to seek treatment for drug and alcohol dependency. 

To this end, employees desiring such assistance should request a treatment or rehabilitation 
leave.  The City is not obligated, however, to continue to employ any person whose performance 



6 

of essential job duties is impaired because of current drug or alcohol use, nor is the City 
obligated to re-employ any person who has participated in treatment and/or rehabilitation if that 
person’s job performance remains impaired as a result of dependency.  The City is not obligated 
to accommodate current usage of illegal drugs or alcohol. 

Additionally, employees who are given the opportunity to seek treatment and/or rehabilitation, 
but fail to successfully overcome their dependency or problem, will not automatically be given a 
second opportunity to seek treatment and/or rehabilitation.  This policy on treatment and 
rehabilitation is not intended to affect the City’s treatment of employees who violate the 
regulations described above.  Rather, rehabilitation is an option for an employee who 
acknowledges a chemical dependency and voluntarily seeks treatment to end that dependency. 

Violation of the above standards of conduct will not be tolerated.  An employee who violates this 
policy is subject to discipline, up to and including immediate discharge, even for a first violation.  

2.06  Harassment and Discrimination Prevention Policy 

All employees, applicants, volunteers, and independent contractors (“workers”) working for the 
City are to be treated with respect and dignity. The City is committed to providing an atmosphere 
free of harassment and discrimination based on such factors as race, religion, creed, national origin 
or ancestry, physical or mental disability, medical condition, genetic condition, pregnancy 
(including childbirth or related conditions), marital status, gender, gender identity, gender 
expression, sex, age, sexual orientation, family care or medical leave status, or any other 
characteristic (or combination thereof) protected by law. 

Harassment and discrimination are against the law, and they are demeaning and harmful to both 
the victim and the City. The City will not tolerate harassment of, or discrimination against, its 
workers by managers, supervisors, co-workers, or anyone conducting City business. Similarly, the 
City will not tolerate harassment of its workers by others with whom the City has a business, 
service, or professional relationship (including members of the public). 

This Policy does not restrict nor inhibit any supervisor from their responsibility or in their ability 
to direct, critique and discipline employees in a non-discriminatory manner. 

Failure to follow this Policy may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of 
employment. 

2.06.1.0  Harassment Prohibited 

Harassment includes conduct that has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an 
individual’s work performance; creating an intimidating, hostile, threatening or offensive working 
environment; or adversely affecting the employee’s performance, evaluation, assigned duties or 
any other condition of employment or career development. This Policy prohibits harassment in 
any form, including: 

2.06.1.1  Oral or Written harassment such as epithets, jokes, nicknames, derogatory comments or 
slurs based on any basis protected by law; 



7 

2.06.1.2  Physical harassment such as assault, touching, impeding or blocking movement, or any 
physical interference with normal work or movement when directed at an individual;  

2.06.1.3  Visual harassment such as derogatory posters, cartoons or drawings, based on one of the 
categories above; and 

2.06.1.4  Sexual harassment includes, any unsolicited, offensive or unwelcome sexual advances, 
requests for sexual favors, and other oral or written, visual, or physical conduct of a sexual nature 
which occurs under any of the following circumstances:   

• Submission to such conduct is made either expressly or by implication a term or
condition of an individual’s employment;

• Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as a basis for
employment decisions affecting the individual;

• Other examples of sexual harassment include unwelcome sexual flirtations or
propositions; verbal abuse of a sexual nature; graphic verbal comments about an
individual’s body; sexually degrading words used to describe an individual; and the
display or use in the work environment of sexually suggestive objects or pictures,
posters, jokes, cartoons, or calendar illustrations;

• Sexual harassment also includes gender-based harassment by a person of the same
gender; or

• Prohibited sexual harassment need not be motivated by sexual desire.

2.06.2  Retaliation Prohibited 

Retaliation against an employee for reporting violations of this Policy in good faith, or for 
participating in the investigation of a harassment or discrimination complaint, is strictly prohibited. 

2.06.3.0  Procedures regarding all complaints of potential harassment including retaliation 

2.06.3.1  Employee Responsibility 

It is important that employees inform the City as soon as possible about any prohibited harassment 
because nothing can be done to remedy the situation if the City does not know that it exists.   

• Any individual who feels comfortable doing so should let a fellow employee know
when that employee’s behavior or comments are offensive or unwelcome, even if
the situation does not rise to the level of a violation of this Policy.  However,
individuals are not required to handle these situations on their own. If an individual
is not comfortable handling a situation directly with another employee, the
individual should immediately report the conduct to one of the persons listed below.

• Any individual who believes that they have been or are being harassed in violation
of this Policy shall immediately report this violation to the employee’s supervisor,



8 

the City Manager or any City supervisor with whom the individual feels 
comfortable speaking. Complaints about the City Manager should be directed to 
the City Attorney or Mayor. 

• Any individual who is aware or suspects that another person has been harassed in
violation of this Policy shall report this violation to the employee’s supervisor, the
City Manager or any City supervisor with whom the individual feels comfortable
speaking.

2.06.3.2  Supervisor Responsibility 

Each supervisor has the responsibility of maintaining a work environment free of harassment.  This 
responsibility includes being available to discuss this Policy with the workers that they supervise 
and to assure the workers that they are not required to endure any form of prohibited harassment. 
If someone reports a harassment allegation to a supervisor, it is the responsibility of the supervisor 
to take immediate action by documenting the incident(s) and reporting the allegation of harassment 
to the City Manager. Complaints about the City Manager should be directed to the City Attorney 
or Mayor. 

• Any supervisor who fails to take appropriate action to report or address harassment,
discrimination or retaliation issues can and will be disciplined by the City.

2.06.3.3  Investigation 

The City will investigate all complaints of harassment in a prompt, objective, and thorough 
manner, including interviews of those with relevant knowledge. The City’s investigation will be 
designed to maintain, to the extent possible, the privacy and confidentiality of all parties and 
witnesses involved. Complete confidentiality cannot occur, however, due to the need to investigate 
fully and to take effective remedial action. Whenever appropriate, the supervisor of the affected 
department(s) may be informed that a complaint has been filed. The City Manager (or designee) 
is responsible for directing an investigation into such allegations and for implementing appropriate 
remedial action, where warranted. The City will not disclose a completed investigation report 
except as it deems necessary to support disciplinary action, to take remedial action, to defend itself 
in adversarial proceedings, or as otherwise required by law. 

2.06.3.4  Resolution 

After investigation, the City will communicate the confidential findings (i.e., sustained, not 
sustained, or inconclusive) to the complainant, the alleged harasser, and members of management 
with a legitimate need to know.   

If there is a finding that harassment in violation of this Policy or applicable laws has occurred, the 
City will take appropriate and immediate action to end any harassment and prevent its recurrence. 

2.06.3.5  Discipline 

Any employee found to have violated this Policy will be disciplined. Specific action taken will 
depend upon the specific circumstances. 



9 

2.06.4  Harassment Involving the Public 

When performing their job duties, all workers are expected to treat others with civility and respect. 

Dealing with the public can be challenging and sometimes contentious. While employees are 
expected to interface with the public as their duties dictate, sometimes in difficult or even volatile 
situations, employees are not expected to endure actual harassment by members of the public. If 
an employee feels that the employee is being subjected to harassment by a member of the public, 
the employee should report such harassment to the employee’s supervisor (or other person listed 
above in 2.06.3.1) for investigation and appropriate action. Employees will not be penalized for 
refusing to tolerate harassment from a member of the public. 

2.06.5  Further Information 

Employees are urged to contact the City Manager if they have any questions or concerns about 
this Policy. 

In addition to this Policy, the State of California Civil Rights Department  (“CRD”) provides 
additional information regarding the legal remedies and complaint process available through the 
government agencies. If a worker thinks the employee has been harassed, discriminated against, 
or that the employee has been retaliated against for complaining, that person may file a complaint 
or obtain additional information from CRD at 1-800-884-1684 or http://www.crd.ca.gov. 

Employees are required to periodically complete training on preventing sexual harassment in the 
workplace.  While the City will provide employees with the training module to complete, 
employees can also access training through the CRD’s website at:  https://www.crd.ca.gov/shpt/ 

2.07  Incompatible Conduct 

Employees shall not engage in any conduct which is incompatible with their City employment. 
Incompatible conduct is defined as conduct, whether on or off-duty, which is incompatible, 
inconsistent, or in conflict with employee’s duties for the City or any duty or function of the City. 
Incompatible conduct includes, but is not limited to, conduct which: 

• Involves the use for private purposes or gain of an employee’s time while engaged
in City work or use of City property, records, equipment, or facilities for private
purposes or gain;

• Involves the personal receipt of money or gratuities in return for an act performed
by the employee in the course of the employee’s City work;

• Involves time demands which reduce the employee’s efficiency in the employee’s
City work;

• Involves services or goods that directly or indirectly relate to contracts with the City
or otherwise cause a conflict of interest.



10 

2.08  Outside Work 

The City discourages outside work; however, employees may hold outside jobs which do not 
constitute a conflict of interest and are not incompatible with City employment as long as they 
meet the performance standards of their job with the City. 

Employees should consider the impact that outside work may have on their ability to perform their 
position with the City. All employees will be judged by the same performance standards and will 
be subject to the City’s scheduling demands, regardless of any existing outside work requirements. 

If the City determines that an employee’s outside work interferes with performance or the ability 
to meet the requirements of this organization as they are modified from time to time, the employee 
may be asked to terminate the outside work if he/she wishes to remain with the City. 

“Outside work” is any employment, self-employment, or contract work, regardless of hours 
involved for which pay is received whether by salary, wages, commission, or other compensation 
structure, if such work is carried on in addition to the employee’s work for the City. 

A full-time or part-time employee may engage in outside work, if and only if all of the following 
are met: 

• The employee has received written approval by the City Manager, which will not
be unreasonably denied. If a problem develops any time subsequent to the written
approval, the approval may be withdrawn by the City Manager. The appropriate
form must be approved and on file with Human Resources for each employee
engaging in outside work.

• The outside work is compatible with the employee’s City employment or City
activities, and the outside work does not constitute a conflict of interest.

2.09  Use of City Technology 

All City computers, e-mail, voicemail, Internet access, and other forms of technology provided by 
the City (“Technology Resources”) are the City’s property and are to be used solely to facilitate 
City business and operations. In addition, all software that has been installed on City computers 
and any data collected, downloaded and/or created on City computers is the exclusive property of 
the City and may not be copied or transmitted to any outside party or used for any purpose not 
directly related to City operations. Upon termination of employment, no employee shall remove 
any software or data from City-owned computers. 

City Technology Resources are provided to assist employees in conducting City business and 
should not be used for personal reasons or for any improper purpose. Some specific examples of 
prohibited uses include but are not limited to: 

• Conducting any type of outside work (even if that outside work is pre-approved and
even if done during non-working hours).



11 

• Transmitting, retrieving, downloading or storing messages or images that are
offensive, derogatory, defamatory, off-color, sexual in content, or otherwise
inappropriate in a business environment.

• Making threatening or harassing statements to another employee, or to a vendor,
customer, or other outside party.

• Transmitting, retrieving, downloading or storing messages or images relating to
race, religion, color, sex, national origin, citizenship status, age, handicap,
disability, sexual orientation, or any other status protected under federal, state and
local laws.

• Sending or receiving confidential or copyrighted materials without prior
authorization.

• Soliciting personal business opportunities or personal advertising.

• Gambling of any kind, monitoring sports scores, or playing electronic games.

• Day trading or otherwise purchasing or selling stocks, bonds or other securities or
transmitting, retrieving, downloading or storing messages or images related to the
purchase or sale of stocks, bonds or other securities.

Employees should expect that all information created, transmitted, downloaded, received or stored 
in City computers is the property of the City and may be accessed by the City at any time without 
prior notice. Employees should not assume that they have an expectation of privacy or 
confidentiality in such messages or information (whether or not such messages or information are 
password-protected), or that deleted messages are necessarily removed from the system. 

Employees must provide all passwords and access codes for City computers to Human Resources. 
Changing passwords or creating new passwords without notifying Human Resources is strictly 
prohibited. 

Because outside disks may contain viruses, employees are not permitted to use personal disks or 
copies of software or data in any form on any City computer without first obtaining specific 
authorization from the City Manager and scanning the data for viruses. Any employee who 
introduces a virus into the City’s system via use of personal software or data shall be held 
responsible for the consequences, including the cost of repair and lost productivity. 

Similarly, information is not to be downloaded directly from the Internet onto the City’s computer 
system. All information downloaded from the Internet is to be placed on a disk and scanned for 
viruses before being introduced into the City’s system. 

Violations of this policy may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of 
employment. Employees who damage the City’s computer system through its unauthorized use 
may additionally be liable for the costs resulting from such damage. Employees who 
misappropriate copyrighted or confidential and proprietary information, or who distribute 



12 

harassing messages or information, may additionally be subject to criminal prosecution and/or 
civil penalties. 

SECTION 3. PERSONNEL 

3.01  Personnel Information 

The Human Resources Department can provide employees with information and necessary 
assistance to understand the City’s personnel policies and to promote a positive work environment. 
Human Resources is the best resource for employees to obtain current information on work rules, 
benefits, personnel policies, payroll data, personnel records, insurance, and termination of 
employment. The role of Human Resources is not only to keep current records, but to help 
employees with any problems or concerns in a timely and confidential manner. 

Human Resources is responsible for maintaining complete and up-to-date personnel records for all 
current employees. It is important that employees notify the Human Resources Department 
promptly of any changes in their names, marital status, number of dependents, emergency contact 
information, mailing address, and telephone number. 

All requests for employment verifications, employee references, or salary verifications must be 
directed promptly to Human Resources. Employees are NOT to provide any such information. 
Human Resources will handle any inquiries or requests for verification in accordance with the 
City’s policies.  In response to reference requests, the City will only provide dates of employment 
and title(s) of position(s) held.   

3.02  Personnel File Information 

An employee’s permanent personnel file contains application materials, payroll records, 
performance appraisals, and any administrative action related to the employee’s employment. This 
file is maintained under the supervision of Human Resources. It is confidential and only those with 
the responsibility and the need to know will have access to it. Employees who wish to see their 
personnel file may make arrangements by contacting the City Manager. The file may be viewed 
in the presence of the City Manager at a mutually convenient time during regular business hours. 

3.03  Performance Evaluation 

Performance evaluations provide an objective gauge of an employee’s on-the-job effectiveness. 
The evaluation process should provide constructive input, communicate expected standards of 
performance, and identify  areas where improvements are needed. 

All full-time employees are reviewed at the completion of six months of employment and annually 
thereafter.  Evaluations may be conducted more frequently at the discretion of the employee’s 
supervisor. 

Merit salary increases may be awarded by the City, based upon a satisfactory performance 
evaluation, until the top of the salary range is reached. Even with a satisfactory performance 



13 

evaluation, an employee is not guaranteed an increase in compensation.  An unsatisfactory 
performance evaluation will result in no merit salary increase. 

Employees are encouraged to provide their input regarding their work performance. Written 
performance evaluations and any written response to the evaluation by the employee will be 
included in the employee’s personnel file. 

Additional performance evaluations may be conducted after a change in job duties or description, 
as a result of poor performance, or as the need arises.  

The City’s performance evaluation process does not change or limit an employee’s at-will status 
and does not change or limit the City’s ability to separate an employee’s employment with or 
without cause, at any time. 

3.04  Classification and Categories of Employment 

FLSA Classifications 

The City is governed by the provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act and employees will be 
compensated accordingly. All employees will be classified as either exempt or non-exempt, as 
defined by law. 

• Exempt Employees. This classification includes employees who meet the
requirements of a professional, administrative, or an executive employee, and are
therefore exempt from the overtime provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act.

• Nonexempt Employees. This classification includes employees who are covered
by the overtime provisions of the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act. This
classification of employees is paid hourly and must receive additional pay for
overtime work as legally required by federal statute. Overtime pay is calculated in
accordance with applicable laws.

Employment Classifications: To determine eligibility for various benefits, the following 
classifications and categories of employment have been established.  

• Full-Time Employee. Employees who are regularly scheduled to work thirty-five
(35) or more hours each week.  Full-time employees are generally eligible for City
benefits, subject to the terms and conditions of each benefit program.

• Part time Employee. Employees who are regularly scheduled to work less than 35
hours during a period of one week or less than one thousand, seven hundred fifty
(1,750) hours during a period of one (1) year.  Part-time employees are not eligible
for benefits, except as required by law.

• Temporary or Intermittent Employees. Employees who hold jobs of limited
duration arising out of special projects, abnormal workloads, or emergencies. An
employee will not change from temporary/ intermittent status to full-time or part-



14 

time status unless specifically informed, in writing, of such a change by the City 
Manager. Employees in this category receive benefits only as required by law.  

• Rehired Employees. Employees who are rehired (as a full-time, part-time, or
temporary/intermittent employee) following a break in service in excess of one (1)
month. Except as otherwise provided in these policies with respect to sick leave,
rehired employees are treated as new employees for purposes of seniority and
benefit accruals.

3.05  Promotions and Transfers 

The City will promote or transfer qualified employees from within when appropriate. 

Promotion occurs when an employee is placed in a new position that represents increased 
responsibility. The promotion may or may not warrant an increase in salary. Factors taken into 
consideration with promotions and regard to salary increases include but are not limited to, the 
background and skills of the employee, the current market value of the position, budgetary limits, 
and the employee’s current salary. 

When on occasion a promotion or transfer does not prove to be successful, the City may in its 
discretion return the employee to the employee’s prior position but is not obligated to do so.  The 
employee remains at-will.   

A transfer is defined as a change in position; typically, the new position is of the same level of 
responsibility and salary as the former position. 

3.06  Garnishment of Wages 

Employees are responsible for their own debts. Garnishments cause considerable paperwork and 
expense for the City. Although we understand that a wage garnishment can happen to anyone, we 
strongly encourage employees to work out a financial remedy before this situation occurs. If this 
situation should be a continued problem, the employee could be subject to disciplinary action. 

3.07  Leaves of Absence 

3.07.1 Family and Medical Leave 

The City provides eligible employees with family medical leave (“Family and Medical Leave”) 
under the California Family Rights Act (“CFRA”). 

3.07.1.1  Reasons for Leave. 

Family and Medical Leave may be taken for the birth of the employee’s child, the placement of a 
child with the employee for adoption or foster care, to care for the employee’s spouse, domestic 
partner, child, parent, parent-in-law, grandparent, grandchild, sibling, or designated person who 
has a serious health condition, or for a serious health condition that makes the employee unable 
to perform the employee’s job.  Leave can also be taken for certain military-related reasons as 
further detailed below.  For purposes of this policy, a “serious health condition” does not include 



15 

pregnancy or any related medical condition. For purposes of this policy, “designated person” 
means any person related by blood or whose association with the employee is the equivalent of a 
family relationship.  An employee may identify the designated person at the time the employee 
requests leave.  The City limits an employee to one designated person per 12-month period for 
family care and medical leave.  

3.07.1.2  Eligibility. 

To be eligible for Family and Medical Leave, an employee must have at least 12 months of 
service with the City and must have worked at least 1,250 hours during the 12-month period 
preceding the date the leave is to begin. 

3.07.1.3  Duration. 

Employees may take up to a maximum of twelve (12) workweeks of Family and Medical Leave 
within a 12-month period.  The City uses a “rolling” 12-month period to determine an 
employee’s eligibility for leave.  The 12-month period is measured backward from the date an 
employee uses any Family and Medical Leave. 

Leave may be taken intermittently (in blocks of time or on a reduced-time schedule) if the leave 
is for the serious health condition of the employee or the employee’s family member and if such 
intermittent leave is medically necessary as determined by the health care provider of the person 
with the serious health condition.  The smallest increment of time that can be used for such leave 
is one-quarter of an hour (0.25).   

Any leave taken for the birth, adoption, or foster placement of a child must be taken within one 
year of the birth or placement of the child with the employee.  The minimum duration for leave 
taken in connection with the birth, adoption, or foster care placement of a child is two weeks, 
except that the City shall grant a request for CFRA leave of less than two weeks on any two 
occasions during the one year period following the birth or placement of the child with the 
employee. 

3.07.1.4  Procedures. 

Please contact Human Resources as soon as you become aware of the need for Family and 
Medical Leave.  If the leave is for the birth, adoption, or foster placement of a child, or for 
planned medical treatment for a serious health condition of the employee or family member, the 
employee must provide at least 30 days’ advance notice before the leave is to begin.  If 30 days’ 
notice is not possible, notice must be given as soon as practicable.  For any planned medical 
treatment, employees must consult with their supervisor regarding the need for leave and must 
make a reasonable effort to schedule any treatment so as to minimize disruption of the City’s 
operations.  Actual scheduling is, however, subject to the approval of the patient’s health care 
provider. 

If the leave is needed for the employee’s own serious health condition, the employee must 
provide a certification from the health care provider stating: 

i. the date of commencement of the serious health condition;



16 

ii. the probable duration of the condition; and

iii. that the employee is unable to work at all or is unable to perform any one or more
of the essential functions of the employee’s position because of the employee’s
serious health condition.

The City will require certification by the employee’s health care provider that the employee is fit 
to return to the employee’s job. 

If the leave is needed to care for the serious health condition of a family member, the employee 
must provide certification from the health care provider stating: 

i. the date of commencement of the serious health condition;

ii. the probable duration of the condition;

iii. an estimate of the amount of time that the health care provider believes the
employee needs to take in order to care for the child, parent, or spouse; and

iv. confirmation that the serious health condition warrants the participation of the
employee.

Recertification may be required if the employee requests an extension beyond the original 
certification. 

3.07.1.5  Compensation. 

(1) While receiving wage replacement benefits.  For any period of time that an
employee is eligible for and receiving any type of wage replacement benefits (i.e.,
disability benefits, SDI, PFL, and/or workers’ compensation benefits), the
employee is not required to use accrued sick leave or vacation in connection with
the employee’s Family and Medical Leave.  The employee may, however, choose
to supplement these forms of wage-replacement payments with accrued paid leave
on a pro rata basis, so long as the employee’s pay does not exceed their normal
wage.  Should an employee desire to supplement SDI benefits with accrued sick
and/or vacation leave, the City will integrate benefits with paid leave.

(2) While on otherwise unpaid leave.  If an employee is on family and medical leave
for the employee’s own serious health condition and is not receiving any wage
replacement benefits from another source, the employee must use any available
sick leave and vacation during the leave.  (See Pregnancy Disability Leave policy
for rule applicable to employees disabled by pregnancy).  If an employee is on
Family and Medical Leave to care for a family member or bond with a new baby,
the employee must use all available vacation during the leave and, at the
employee’s choice, may use available sick leave.

Once all sick leave and vacation is exhausted (or if the employee has the choice and elects not to 
use it), Family and Medical Leave will continue on an unpaid basis for the remainder (if any) of 



17 

the available 12-weeks.  Any family and medical leave, whether paid, unpaid, or a combination 
thereof, will be counted toward the 12-week leave entitlement. 

During any period of unpaid leave, employees will not continue to accrue sick leave, vacation, or 
any other forms of paid time off and will not be paid for holidays that occur during the leave. 

3.07.1.6  Benefits. 

An employee taking Family and Medical Leave will be allowed to continue participating in any 
health and welfare benefit plans in which he/she was enrolled before the first day of the leave 
(for up to a maximum of 12 workweeks) at the level and under the conditions of coverage as if 
the employee had continued in employment for the duration of such leave.  The City will 
continue to make the same premium contribution as if the employee had continued working, and 
the employee is expected to continue to pay the employee’s share of the monthly premiums 
(either by way of payroll deduction during any period of paid leave or by way of separate 
payment to the City).  The continued participation in health benefits begins on the date leave first 
begins. 

Employees are eligible for a maximum of 12-weeks benefits continuation during any 12-month 
period, unless otherwise required by law.  If leave lasts longer than 12 weeks and if the law does 
not otherwise require benefits to be continued, then the employee will be placed on COBRA and 
can opt for continued coverage at the employee’s own expense.  An employee who does not 
return from leave may be required, under certain circumstances provided by the law, to 
reimburse the City for any employee contributions paid by the City while the employee was on 
unpaid leave. 

3.07.1.7  Qualified Exigency Leave. 

Eligible employees with a spouse, domestic partner, child, or parent on active duty or called to 
active duty in the armed forces of the United States may take up to the normal 12 weeks of leave 
because of any “qualifying exigency.”  For purposes of this policy, “qualifying exigency” 
includes:  (1) short-notice deployment; (2) military events and related activities; (3) childcare 
and school activities; (4) finance and legal arrangements; (5) counseling; (6) rest and 
recuperation; (7) post-deployment activities; and (8) additional activities agreed to by the 
employer and the employee. 

(1) Amount of Leave.  For a qualifying exigency, an employee is entitled to a
maximum of 12 weeks leave (when combined with leave for any other qualifying
reason) in accordance with the rolling 12-month period measured backward.

(2) Procedures.  Please contact Human Resources as soon as you become aware of
the need for any type of qualified exigency leave.  Except in the case of exigency
leave for short-notice deployment, the City requires certification of the need for
leave.

3.07.1.8  Reinstatement. 



18 

Upon return from a Family and Medical Leave, an employee will be reinstated to the employee’s 
original position or to an equivalent position with equivalent pay, benefits, and other 
employment terms and conditions.  However, an employee has no greater right to reinstatement 
than if the employee had been continuously employed rather than on leave. 

For example, if an employee on Family and Medical Leave would have been laid off had he/she 
not gone on leave, or if the employee’s position has been eliminated during the leave, then the 
employee would not be entitled to reinstatement.  An employee’s use of Family and Medical 
Leave will not result in the loss of any employment benefit that the employee earned or was 
entitled to before the leave. 

As stated above, when an employee takes leave on account of the employee’s own serious health 
condition, the City requires certification, prior to reinstatement, by the employee’s health care 
provider that the employee is fit to return to the employee’s job. 

If an employee fails to report to work promptly at the end of the Family and Medical Leave and 
fails to obtain approval for an additional personal leave of absence, the City will treat the failure 
to return as a voluntary resignation. 

3.07.2 Pregnancy Disability Leave 

3.07.2.1  Eligibility. 

The City provides Pregnancy Disability Leave without pay to eligible employees who are 
temporarily unable to work due to a disability related to pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical 
conditions. Additionally, employees affected by pregnancy or a related medical condition are 
eligible to transfer to a less strenuous or hazardous position or to less strenuous or hazardous duties, 
if such a transfer is medically advisable and can be reasonably accommodated. Time off for 
necessary prenatal care, severe morning sickness, doctor-ordered bed rest, childbirth, and recovery 
from childbirth are all covered by this leave. 

Procedures for Requesting Leave/Certification: Employees should make requests for Pregnancy 
Disability Leave to the City Manager at least thirty (30) days in advance of foreseeable events and 
as soon as possible for unforeseeable events. 

A health care provider’s statement must be submitted verifying the need for Pregnancy Disability 
Leave or for a transfer and stating: 

• The date on which the employee became disabled due to pregnancy, childbirth or
related medical condition or the date on which the need for a transfer became
medically advisable;

• The probable duration of the period(s) of disability or the duration of the need for
a transfer; and



19 

• A statement that, due to the disability, the employee is unable to perform one or
more of the essential functions of her position without undue risk to herself, the
successful completion of her pregnancy, or to other persons, or that the transfer is
medically advisable.

The City may require re-certification if the employee requests an extension beyond the original 
certification. 

If there is any change in the information contained in the health care provider’s statement, the 
employee must report these changes promptly to the City Manager. 

3.07.2.2  Length of Leave: 

Normally, full-time employees are granted unpaid leave for the period of actual disability, up to a 
maximum of four (4) months (i.e., 88 working days). Part-time employees are granted unpaid leave 
on a pro-rata basis. 

Pregnancy Disability Leave need not be taken in one continuous period of time. It can be taken on 
an as-needed basis. In other words, leave may be taken intermittently or on a reduced work 
schedule when determined medically advisable by the employee’s health care provider. The 
smallest increment of time that can be used for such leave is 0.25 hours. The City may transfer the 
employee to an alternative position or alter the existing job to accommodate intermittent leave or 
a reduced work schedule. The employee will receive the same pay and benefits in the alternative 
position. 

3.07.2.3  Benefits during Leave: 

An employee taking Pregnancy Disability Leave must use all accrued sick leave before continuing 
on an unpaid basis. An employee may substitute accrued vacation before continuing leave on an 
unpaid basis. Substituted paid leave time will be counted toward the four-month (i.e., 88 working 
days) entitlement. The employee may also be eligible for State Disability Insurance.  

Except while using accrued paid leave (excluding SDI), employees on Pregnancy Disability Leave 
will not continue to accrue additional sick leave or vacation time and will not be paid for holidays 
during the leave. Medical, Dental and Vision coverage will continue during Pregnancy Disability 
Leave in the same manner as if the employee was actively at work. This means that the employee 
will be responsible for her contributing premium payment for the entire length of the leave. For 
any time during which an employee is on unpaid leave, the employee will need to make 
arrangements to pay her portion of benefits. Failure to timely pay the employee share could result 
in termination of benefits. 

3.07.2.4  Return to Work: 

In order that the City can properly schedule an employee’s return to work, an employee on 
Pregnancy Disability Leave should provide the City Manager with at least two weeks’ advance 
notice of the date she intends to return to work. 



20 

When a Pregnancy Disability Leave ends, the City will reinstate an employee to her original 
position or to a comparable position with equivalent pay, benefits, and other employment terms 
and conditions, in accordance with state law. However, an employee has no greater right to 
reinstatement than if the employee had been continuously employed rather than on leave. For 
example, if an employee on Pregnancy Disability Leave would have been laid off had she not gone 
on leave, or if the employee’s position has been eliminated during the leave and there is no 
comparable position available, then the employee would not be entitled to reinstatement. An 
employee’s use of Pregnancy Disability Leave will not result in the loss of any employment benefit 
that the employee earned or was entitled to before the leave. 

Employees returning from Pregnancy Disability Leave must submit a health care provider’s 
verification of their fitness to return to work. 

If an employee fails to report to work promptly at the end of the Pregnancy Disability Leave, the 
City will assume that the employee has voluntarily resigned. 

3.07.3 Drug and Alcohol Rehabilitation Leave 

The City wishes to assist employees who recognize that they have a problem with drugs or alcohol. 
Employees who have a problem with drugs and alcohol and who decide to enroll voluntarily in a 
drug and/or alcohol rehabilitation program may request unpaid time off to participate in the 
program.  

The employee may use any accrued sick leave, vacation, or compensatory time while on drug and 
alcohol leave. However, additional benefits will not be earned during any unpaid leave of absence. 

3.07.4 Bereavement Leave 

In the event of a death in the immediate family of any employee who has worked for the City for 
more than thirty (30) days, the employee will be allowed up to five  (5) normally scheduled 
consecutive working days off. The employee should notify the employee’s supervisor 
immediately. 

Immediate family members include: Spouse, domestic partners, parents, parents-in-law, or step-
parents, children or step-children, siblings or step-siblings, and grandparents or step-grandparents. 

Full-time employees will be paid the employee’s regular wage for each of the scheduled work days 
missed (up to 3) and can take up to a total of five days.  For any days in excess of three, the full-
time employee can use available vacation or sick leave or take leave without pay.  Part-time and 
temporary employees can take unpaid time off, except they can substitute any available sick leave 
for the bereavement time off.   

If requested, the employee must furnish satisfactory evidence to support the leave. Leave can be 
taken intermittently, as long as it is concluded within three months of the death. 

3.07.5  Military Leave 



21 

Any eligible employee will be granted a leave of absence for military duty in accordance with 
federal and state laws governing such leaves. Employee must submit written verification from the 
appropriate military authority. 

3.07.6  Jury/Witness Duty 

An employee shall be entitled to leave without loss of pay for any time the employee is required 
to perform jury duty or testify pursuant to a subpoena. The employee shall submit a copy of the 
jury duty notice or witness subpoena to their supervisor. The employee shall deposit with the City 
any witness fees or jury fees, but any meal, mileage, or parking allowance provided the employee 
shall not be considered in the amount received for jury duty.  Employees are expected to report to 
duty during any work hours they are excused from jury or witness service.   

This policy does not apply to employees who elect to serve as expert witnesses. If an employee 
elects to do so, the employee may request to use accrued vacation, CTO, or personal holidays. 

3.07.7  Time Off To Vote 

Employees are encouraged to fulfill their civic responsibilities by voting; however, if an employee 
is unable to vote in a statewide election during the employee’s non-working hours, the City will 
grant up to two hours of paid time off to vote in a statewide election. 

Employees are required to request time off to vote by submitting, in writing, a request to their 
supervisor at least two (2) days prior to the election day. Employees must submit a voter’s receipt 
on the first working day following the election. 

Returning From a Leave of Absence/Abandonment of Employment 

When an employee is granted a leave of absence, an employee’s position will be held, where 
required by law, for the period of the approved leave. Due to business needs there will be times 
when the position cannot be held open. Under such conditions it will not be possible to guarantee 
reinstatement except as required by law.  

An employee who accepts other employment, without prior approval, during a leave of absence, 
or who fails to return on the next regularly scheduled work day following the expiration of an 
approved leave, will be considered to have abandoned their employment and may be terminated. 
Exceptions will be made for those employees who have obtained an authorized extension prior to 
the leave of absence expiration date or where the City and the employee are engaging in an 
interactive process about the employee’s possible entitlement to additional leave as a reasonable 
accommodation.   

If no such extension has been requested or authorized, the depositing in the United States mail of 
a first class letter, postage paid, addressed to the employee’s last known address shall be considered 
a reasonable notice of separation. 

Misrepresentations for Leave of Absence 



22 

Any employee who misrepresents his or her reasons for applying for a leave of absence will be 
subject to disciplinary action or termination. 

3.08  Severance Pay 

The city does not maintain a formal severance pay policy or provide severance pay to employees 
who separate from its employ for any reason. Severance pay should not be expected.  

3.09  Vacation 

Paid vacation is available to eligible employees to provide opportunities for rest, relaxation, and 
personal pursuits. 

Full-time employees are eligible to earn and use vacation time at a specified accrual rate depending 
on length of City service. New employees accrue vacation, but cannot use it within the first six (6) 
months of employment. Part-time employees are not eligible for vacation leave.  

In order to allow a well-coordinated schedule, employees are requested to submit their Request for 
Time Off Form at least one month prior to when they would like to take their vacation. The form 
is to be signed by the employee and the employee’s supervisor. Approval will depend on whether 
the request would adversely impact City operations or impose an undue hardship on the remaining 
staff’s workload. 

The maximum amount of paid vacation time, monthly accrual rate, and maximum vacation accrual 
amounts increase with the length of service as set forth below.  

VACATION ACCRUAL FOR FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES 
Years of Service Maximum Vacation 

per Year (Weeks) 
Accrual Rate 

(Hours/Month) 
Maximum 

Permissible Accrual 
4 years or less 2 weeks 6.67 hours 120 hours 

more than 4 years 3 weeks 10 hours 200 hours 

After an employee completes six months of service, vacations may be scheduled at any time after 
vacation time is earned, subject to the applicable supervisor’s approval and the City’s need for the 
employee’s services. For employees who work more than 35 hours but less than 40 hours per week, 
vacation accrual is earned in proportion to the employee’s FTE equivalent work schedule.  

An employee who reaches the maximum accrual amount does not accrue additional vacation leave 
until the employee utilizes vacation leave so that there is room under the maximum accrual cap. 

Upon separation, employees will be paid for unused vacation time, CTO, and personal holidays. 
The employee’s current rate of pay at the time of separation will be used to calculate payment. 

3.10  Holidays 

All full-time employees will receive pay at their normal hourly rate for the following twelve (12) 
holidays subject to the restrictions described below: 



23 

New Year’s Day 
Martin Luther King Day 
Presidents’ Day 
Memorial Day 
Independence Day 
Labor Day 
Veteran’s Day 
Thanksgiving (2 days) 
December 25 (2 days) 
Personal Holiday (1 day) 

Full-time employees are eligible for holiday benefits. Employees who are not classified as full-
time employees are ineligible for holiday benefits.  

In order to be eligible for holiday benefits, an employee must work the last scheduled workday 
before and the first scheduled workday after the holiday unless receiving approval from their 
supervisor. 

If a holiday falls on a Saturday, it will be observed on the preceding Friday. If a holiday falls on a 
Sunday, it will be observed on the following Monday. 

If a holiday falls during an employee’s approved vacation period, the employee will be paid for 
the holiday and will not be charged with a vacation day for the day the holiday is observed. Pay 
for a holiday is equal to eight (8) hours of the employee’s regular rate of pay, for employees who 
work 40 hours in a week, or a pro-rata amount for employees who are regularly scheduled to work 
more than 35 but less than 40 hours per week. 

Employees on unpaid leave of absence for any reason are ineligible for holiday benefits for 
holidays that are observed during the period they are on leave of absence. 

Employees who are required to work on a holiday shall be compensated at time and one-half the 
employee’s base rate of pay. 

3.11  Regular Sick Leave (Full Time Employees) 

Full-time employees will accrue sick leave benefits at the rate of eight (8) hours per month, for 
employees who work forty (40) hours in a week. This benefit is not available to part-time, 
intermittent, or temporary employees. Such employees accrue sick leave in accordance with the 
“Minimum Sick Leave” policy below. 

Eligible employees may use sick leave after completing ninety (90) days of employment.  Sick 
leave can be used for an absence due to the employee’s own illness or injury, the illness or injury 
of an immediate family member, to obtain preventive care, to obtain assistance when the employee 
or a family member is a victim of a qualifying act of violence, and for any other reason authorized 
by applicable law.  



24 

Employees who are unable to report to work due to illness or injury are to notify their direct 
supervisor before the scheduled start of their workday. The direct supervisor must also be 
contacted before the scheduled start of each additional day of absence. 

If an employee is absent for five (5) or more consecutive days, the City may require a licensed 
physician’s statement verifying the employee’s ability to return to work.  

Sick leave is intended solely to provide income protection in the event of illness or injury and may 
not be used for any other purpose unless authorized by law. Sick leave may not be utilized as a 
substitute for vacation or other forms of leave. 

Sick leave has no cash value. Employees will not be paid for unused sick leave benefits while they 
are employed nor at separation from employment. 

3.11a  Minimum Sick Leave (For Employees Ineligible for Regular Sick Leave) 

Any employee who is not otherwise eligible for sick leave under the City’s sick leave policy in 
section 3.11 (i.e. temporary and part-time employees) shall be eligible for this Minimum Paid Sick 
Leave. An employee who works thirty (30) or more days within a year from the commencement 
of employment is eligible for Minimum Paid Sick Leave. This policy is intended to comply with 
the requirements of California law. 

Upon hire, employees will be provided with a lump sum of forty (40) hours of sick leave for use 
during that calendar year.  Employees are eligible to use sick leave after completing ninety (90) 
days of employment.  At the commencement of each calendar year thereafter, employees will be 
granted a lump sum of forty (40) hours for use during that calendar year.  This annual grant does 
not roll over to the next calendar year and is not paid out upon termination of employment, 
retirement, or death. The Minimum Paid Sick Leave entitlement and its use shall be reflected on 
the covered employee’s regular pay stubs. 

Minimum Paid Sick Leave may be used for any purpose authorized by law.  These uses include, 
but are not limited to use by a covered employee for preventative care or diagnosis, care, or 
treatment of an existing health condition for the covered employee or his or her family member; 
and use by a covered employee to obtain assistance or services when that employee or a family 
member is a victim of a qualifying act of violence.  For purposes of this policy, a “family member” 
is defined as a child (a biological, adopted, or foster child, stepchild, legal ward, or a child to whom 
the employee stands in loco parentis), a parent (a biological, adoptive or foster parent, stepparent, 
or legal guardian of an employee or the employee’s spouse or registered domestic partner, or a 
person who stood in loco parentis when the employee was a minor child), a spouse or registered 
domestic partner, a grandparent, grandchild, sibling, or “designated person.”  For purposes of this 
policy, “designated person” means a person identified by the employee at the time the employee 
requests paid sick leave.  An employee can designate one person per 12 month period, measured 
from the time the employee first designates a person.   

Procedural requirements, including those requirements related to notice, request of use, acceptable 
uses, prohibited uses, minimum increments, and medical certification shall be governed by existing 
policies relating to unscheduled leave as set forth in the regular sick leave policy. 



25 

SECTION 4. HOURS AND PAY 

4.01  Workweek and Workday 

The City’s workweek begins on Sunday at 12:00am, and ends the following Saturday at 11:59pm. 
The City’s workday starts at 12:00am, and ends at 11:59pm.   

4.02Work Schedule 

The normal work week for most City employees is eight (8) hours per day, five (5) days per week. 
Staffing needs and operational demands may necessitate variations in starting and ending times, 
as well as variations in the total hours that may be scheduled each day and week. Employees will 
be assigned a work schedule and will be expected to begin and end work according to the schedule. 
In order to accommodate the City’s operational needs, it may be necessary to change individual 
work schedules on either a short-term or long-term basis.  Due to the nature of the City’s business, 
there may also be a need to respond and perform work outside of regular business hours.   

Employees should not report to work prior to their scheduled starting time, nor stay after their 
scheduled stop time. Employees should not stay over or come to work early without express prior 
authorization from their supervisor. 

Employees must call prior to the beginning of their workday for each day of absence unless other 
arrangements have been made with their supervisor. Failure to notify a supervisor in advance of 
an absence will constitute an unauthorized absence. 

Unless otherwise stated, any employee who is absent for two consecutive work days without 
notifying the employee’s supervisor is considered to have voluntarily resigned without notice at 
the close of the second day. 

4.03  Timekeeping and Overtime 

Timekeeping: Accurately recording time worked is the responsibility of every employee. Federal 
and state laws require the City to keep an accurate record of time worked in order to calculate 
employee pay and benefits. Time worked is defined as the time actually spent on the job 
performing assigned responsibilities. 

Employees should accurately record the time they begin and end their work as well as the 
beginning and ending time of any split shift or departure from work. All non-exempt employees 
have designated time sheets to use for recording their time. 

Altering, falsifying, or tampering with time records, or recording time on another employee’s time 
record may result in disciplinary action, up to and including immediate termination of 
employment. 

Breaks: During each work day, employees are entitled to two paid rest periods of 15 minutes each. 
To the extent possible, the employee should, at their discretion, take rest periods as close to the 
middle of each four hour work period as possible. Since rest periods are counted as hours worked, 
employees must not be absent from their work stations beyond the allotted rest period. Rest periods 



26 

cannot be saved and used to extend lunch or to leave early/come in late to work. Supervisors are 
responsible for scheduling rest periods. 

Lunch: All employees are entitled to one unpaid meal period each workday. Administration 
employees take one-half hour during the middle of the work day. Maintenance employees take 
one-half hour, staggering the meal period amongst the employees. Supervisors will try to 
accommodate requested scheduling variations based on operating requirements. During the meal 
period, employees will be relieved of all active responsibilities and restrictions and will not be 
compensated for that time. 

Overtime and Work Assignments: When operating requirements or other needs cannot be met 
during regular working hours, employees may be scheduled to work overtime hours. The City 
reserves the right to assign employees to jobs other than their usual assignments when required. 
Advance notification of these mandatory assignments will be provided whenever possible. 
Overtime assignments will be distributed as equitably as practical to all employees qualified to 
perform the required work. No employee may work overtime without the prior approval of their 
supervisor. Failure to work scheduled overtime or overtime worked without prior authorization 
from the supervisor may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of 
employment.  

Paid holidays, sick days, vacation, or other leave do not count as hours worked for purposes of 
overtime. 

• Time worked: Employees shall record all time worked including time worked over
their normal schedule on the time sheet at the time it actually occurs. Compensatory
time off (CTO) will be logged on a daily basis.

• Weekends: Weekend work does not automatically qualify for overtime or CTO.
Hours worked on Saturday/Sunday qualify only if qualified as overtime hours.

• Holidays Worked: Employees who work on a recognized holiday shall be given
compensation time off at one and one-half (1-1/2) time rate for hours actually
worked on the holiday.

4.04  Compensatory Time Off (CTO) 

Overtime is given in the form of cash wages or, at the employee’s option, Compensatory Time Off 
(CTO). In either case, overtime will be compensated at time and one-half (1-1/2) rate, for all hours 
worked in excess of 40 hours in any given work week. The employee should designate on his or 
her time card whether cash compensation or CTO is selected for the overtime worked in that work 
period. 

Upon reasonable advance request, CTO may be taken at a time mutually acceptable to the 
employee and the supervisor given operational constraints. Upon separation, the employee will be 
paid for any outstanding CTO. 

No employee may accrue any more than 240 hours of CTO. 



27 

The City reserves the right to impose a mandatory cash-out of CTO at times selected by the City.  

4.05  Wage and Salary Administration 

Payroll: Employees are paid twice monthly. Each paycheck will include earnings for all work 
performed through the end of the current payroll period. The City offers direct deposit and 
encourages employees to utilize this method for payment, which shall be at the employee’s option. 

Payroll Deductions: The law requires that the City make certain deductions from every 
employee’s compensation. Among these are applicable federal withholding, state withholding, 
State Disability Insurance (SDI), Social Security, Medicare taxes, and court-ordered garnishments. 

Deductions will also be made for health insurance and dental premiums for family members if an 
employee is eligible for and requests such insurance and deductions. 

If you have any questions concerning deductions made from your paycheck, please contact Human 
Resources. 

4.06  Payday 

The City’s payday is the 5th and the 20th of each month. Employees can pick up their paychecks 
at the Human Resources Office between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on that payday. 

4.07  Compensation Philosophy 

Each City position is paid according to a “salary range” established by the City Council. Each 
salary range may have one or more “salary steps” within it. For example, a Maintenance Worker 
H position could be set at salary range XX, which could have 5 salary steps, A-E, each of which 
pays an increasing amount in 5% increments. 

In an effort to attract and retain qualified employees, it is the City’s policy to establish competitive 
salaries and merit increase programs. The City Council is responsible for administering the wage 
and salary program and for approving necessary salary range and position classifications. 

The salary range limits by job classification and cost-of-living (COLA) increases will be 
determined by the City Council. Cost-of-living increases mean salary or compensation adjustments 
related to economic conditions (cost of living) rather than performance. Such increases are not 
granted regularly and when given are granted to all employees within a particular class rather than 
to individuals. 

Individual employees will normally be hired at the lowest step in a given salary range, but may be 
hired at a higher step in the discretion of the City Manager. Employees are eligible for 
consideration of a step increase at their annual performance evaluation if their performance has 
been satisfactory. A satisfactory performance evaluation does not guarantee a compensation 
increase.  All step increases are determined by the City Manager in his or her discretion. 



28 

4.08  Stand-by Duty 

Employees in the classifications of Public Works Superintendent, Maintenance Worker I and II, 
Chief Water Treatment Plant Operator, and Waste Water Operator may be assigned by their 
supervisor to perform “stand-by duty” in addition to regularly scheduled work. Employees 
assigned to stand-by duty are obligated during the period of stand-by duty to remain available to 
be called back to work in the event of an emergency or critical maintenance incident during a 
period of time when City employees are not normally on-duty, including nights, weekends and 
holidays, when in the judgment of the City the public health, safety and welfare requires that the 
emergency or critical maintenance incident cannot be left unresolved until public works employees 
would normally return to work. 

Employees scheduled to be on stand-by duty shall be available at all times either by telephone or 
cell-phone as previously arranged with the supervisor. During stand-by duty, employees are free 
to undertake any private activities, provided that the employees on stand-by shall return to work 
within thirty (30) minutes of a “call-back” and shall not use or ingest any alcohol or drugs while 
on stand-by duty.  

Employees scheduled to be on stand-by duty may be permitted or required to take a City vehicle 
home so that they can respond directly to the scene without first responding to the City’s 
corporation yard to obtain the vehicle or tools. If permitted or required to take a City vehicle home, 
the employee shall not utilize either the vehicle or any tools for any private purpose. The vehicle 
may only be driven and to and from work. 

Employees shall be paid for stand-by duty as approved by the City Council. Such time shall not 
be considered “hours worked” for purposes of the Fair Labor Standards Act (“FLSA”). 

An employee on stand-by duty who receives a request to report or receives a “call back” shall 
report to work not later than 30 minutes after the first attempt by a supervisor to contact the 
employee. An employee shall be compensated at his or her normal hourly rate for all time spent 
on the call-back, including travel to and from the work location. All such time shall be considered 
as “hours worked” for purposes of the Fair Labor Standards Act (“FLSA”). Any call-back shall be 
paid for a minimum of two (2) hours, but only hours actually worked shall be counted as hours 
worked for FLSA purposes. However, any call-back which occurs less than two (2) hours prior to 
the beginning of the employee’s regularly scheduled shift shall be compensated only for the time 
actually worked. 

SECTION 5. BENEFITS 

5.01  Benefits Eligibility 

Eligible employees of the City are provided a wide range of benefits. A number of the programs, 
e.g., workers’ compensation, state disability, and unemployment insurance cover all employees in
the manner prescribed by law.

Benefits eligibility is dependent upon a variety of factors including the number of hours an 
employee works. Human Resources will identify the programs for which you are eligible. 



29 

In general, the City provides a City paid life insurance policy of $25,000.00 to full-time employees; 
with the ability for the employee to purchase additional life insurance. 

The City provides a health benefit allowance for Health, Dental and Vision Insurance. 

The City provides access to a Deferred Compensation Plan,  

5.02  Worker’s Compensation Insurance 

The City is permissibly self-insured for worker’s compensation as required by law to protect 
employees who are injured on the job. This self-insurance provides medical, surgical, and hospital 
treatment in addition to payment for loss of earnings that result from work-related injuries. 
Compensation payments begin from the first day of an employee’s hospitalization or after the third 
day following the injury (if an employee is not hospitalized) when the employee is determined to 
be unable to work. The cost of these benefits is paid completely by the City. 

If you are injured while working, you must file a report of injury immediately with your supervisor, 
regardless of how minor the injury is. If you have any questions regarding the Worker’s 
Compensation Self-Insurance Program, please contact Human Resources. 

5.03  State Disability Insurance 

As an additional benefit, you are covered under the State Disability Insurance plan (SDI). This 
insurance provides low cost disability protection if illness or injury not caused by the job prevents 
you from working. 

All employees are eligible and pay for this program. Claim forms are available in Human 
Resource’s office. You must file a claim to receive any payment. 

SECTION 6. EMPLOYEE REQUIREMENTS 

6.01  Employee Conduct and Work Rules 

The City strives to operate efficiently while providing a safe and pleasant working environment 
for its employees. To this end, it is necessary to set certain standards of conduct and provide 
employees with guidance concerning unacceptable behavior. Infractions of these rules will result 
in disciplinary action, up to and including termination. It must be noted that this list is not 
exhaustive and merely contains examples of the types of conduct that can lead to the imposition 
of disciplinary action. The City reserves the right to determine conduct that is detrimental to the 
safety and welfare of its employees or operations.  Nothing in this policy impacts an employee’s 
at-will status.  Employees can still be terminated or disciplined on an at-will basis at the City’s 
discretion.   

The following conduct is unacceptable: 



30 

• Falsification of information on an application or physical examination
questionnaire, including falsification by omission;

• Falsifying City or personnel records;

• Dishonesty in the workplace;

• Failure to observe working hours and overtime requirements and restrictions;

• Operating machinery or equipment in an unsafe manner such that it might endanger
the safety of oneself or others;

• Theft of, unauthorized possession of, or intentional damage to City, state, or staff
property;

• Altering, removing, or destroying records without permission;

• Physical or verbal abuse or harassment of the public or City officers, agents or
employees;

• Possession of weapons at the work place;

• Threats of violence, either implicit or explicit towards the public or City officers,
agents, or employees;

• Defamatory remarks about the City or its officers, agents or employees;

• Insubordination;

• Excessive absences or tardiness;

• Failure to report a personal injury or accident, or damage to City equipment;

• Conduct unbecoming a public employee;

• Unsatisfactory work performance including, but not limited to, unsatisfactory
quantity or quality of work;

• Violation of fire or safety regulations;

• Smoking in unauthorized areas;

• Use, possession, manufacture, distribution, transfer, sale, or solicitation of illegal
drugs on City property, including City vehicles, or while conducting City business;

• Use, possession or being under the influence of alcohol or illegal drugs on City
property, including City vehicles or while conducting City business; or



31 

Nothing in the above list alters the at-will nature of employment with the City or requires “cause” 
for any type of employment action. In other words, even if an employee does not engage in any of 
the specified conduct above, the employee can still be terminated without cause. City employees 
do not have a  right to any type of pre- or post-disciplinary hearing, or a right to continued 
employment.  

6.02  Disciplinary Procedures 

When an employee engages in misconduct or an employee’s job performance is unsatisfactory in 
the judgment of the responsible supervisors, disciplinary procedures may be initiated. The possible 
disciplinary actions that may be taken against an employee include: oral reprimand, written 
reprimand, suspension without pay, demotions and/or dismissal. The City reserves the right, in all 
instances, to decide what level of discipline (if any) to impose.  A written record of all disciplinary 
actions shall be placed in the employee’s personnel file. The written record shall be signed and 
dated by both the supervisor and the employee. If the employee refuses to sign the documentation, 
the supervisor shall write “Employee refused to sign” in the space provided for employee’s 
signature and shall date the entry. A copy of the written record shall be given to the employee. 

6.03  Administrative Leave 

The City Manager may at any time, whether as a part of the disciplinary process or otherwise, 
place an employee on administrative leave with pay if the employee determines that such action is 
in the best interests of the City. 

6.04  Grievance Procedures 

The City is committed to on-going, open communication with employees regarding performance, 
goals, objectives, policies, benefits, and all other issues which have an impact on employees. The 
City understands that during the course of City business, disputes can and will arise and urges 
employees to resolve these disputes through communication and compromise. The purpose of 
these grievance procedures is to allow all employees to voice City-related complaints, to have 
them considered fairly by the City and to have them resolved at the lowest level possible. 

A “grievance” is an asserted complaint of a violation, misinterpretation, inequitable application of 
or non-compliance with existing City rules, regulations, or policies. Complaints relating to 
employment classification, performance evaluations and/or disciplinary action do not fall within 
the definition of a “grievance” for purposes of this policy and the City will not engage in its 
grievance procedures regarding these complaints. 

The City will not take punitive action against any employee for using the grievance procedure. 

Each party involved in a grievance shall act quickly so that the grievance can be resolved promptly. 
Every effort should be made to complete the grievance procedure within the limits specified in the 
grievance procedure. The parties may extend the time limitations for any step through mutual 
consent. 

Informal Grievance Procedures 



32 

First Step. An employee must first discuss the grievance with the employee’s supervisor within 
seven (7) calendar days of the incident giving rise to the grievance. The supervisor shall make sure 
that any grievance made by an employee, in any form or manner, receives prompt, fair attention. 
If the supervisor fails to take any action on the employee’s grievance within seven (7) calendar 
days of the report, the employee’s informal grievance is deemed denied. 

Formal Grievance Procedures 

Second Step. If the employee feels the grievance has not been settled to the employee’s 
satisfaction within seven (7) calendar days of their presenting the grievance to the employee’s 
supervisor, the employee may file a formal grievance. The employee must file this grievance 
within seven (7) calendar days of the denial of the informal grievance by submitting to the 
employee’s immediate supervisor a written statement giving a concise account of the grievance. 
The written statement shall include: 

• The date of the event;

• A brief summary of what happened;

• The rule, regulation, or policy the employee claims was violated;

• The names of the individuals involved;

• Other pertinent information that may be necessary to arrive at a full understanding.

The immediate supervisor shall reply, in writing, to the employee initiating the grievance within 
seven (7) calendar days of receiving the grievance statement. If the grievance is settled at this 
point, no further action will be taken, and the supervisor’s decision will be considered final and 
binding. 

Third Step. If an employee is not satisfied with the decision at the second step of this procedure, 
he/she will have an additional three (3) working days to request a decision by the City Manager. 
The City Manager will discuss the problem with the employee and review the immediate 
supervisor’s verbal or written decision within ten (10) working days unless the City Manager 
determines that additional time is required under the circumstances. The City Manager shall 
provide a response in writing to the employee. The decision at this step shall be final and 
conclusive for all parties. 

6.05  Attendance and Punctuality 

To maintain a safe and productive work environment, the City expects employees to be reliable 
and punctual in reporting for work. Absenteeism and tardiness place a burden on other employees 
and the City. In the rare instance when an employee cannot avoid being late to work or is unable 
to work as scheduled, he/she must notify the supervisor as far in advance as possible of normal 
business hours and, at a minimum, within the first half hour of the start of the employee’s shift. 
Poor attendance and excessive tardiness are disruptive and unacceptable and may lead to 
disciplinary action, including termination of employment. 



33 

6.06  Safety 

Establishment and maintenance of a safe work environment are the shared responsibility of the 
City and employees at all levels. The City will take all reasonable steps to assure a safe 
environment and compliance with federal, state, and local safety regulations. 

Employees are expected to comply with safety rules and to exercise caution in all their work 
activities. They must immediately report any unsafe conditions to their supervisor. Both 
supervisors and employees at all levels are expected to correct unsafe conditions as promptly as 
possible. 

All accidents that result in injury must be reported to the appropriate supervisor, regardless of how 
insignificant the injury may appear. Such reports are necessary to comply with laws and initiate 
insurance and workers’ compensation procedures. 

It is the responsibility of each employee to: 

• Be constantly aware of potential problems within the work environment which may
cause injury, and report any problems to the employee’s supervisor;

• Continually familiarize himself/herself with the safe operation of equipment and
the safe use of chemicals;

• Obey all safety rules and regulations established by the City and practice them to
the best of the employee’s ability;

• Report immediately to the employee’s supervisor all hazards that could cause or
have caused injury.

All employees are responsible for complying with the safety procedures. Violations of safe 
working procedures are cause for disciplinary action, up to and including termination of 
employment. 

6.07  Dress Standards 

In the interest of presenting a professional image to the public, employees are expected to dress in 
a business-like manner that reflects our respect for our public and the importance of the work we 
do together. Employees are expected to present a clean and neat appearance and to dress 
professionally in accordance with their working environments (e.g. office work, field work, etc.). 
The supervisor is responsible for enforcing proper dress and personal hygiene. If an employee’s 
dress and grooming are determined to be inappropriate, the employee will be counseled by the 
employee’s supervisor. In some cases, the employee’s supervisor may send the employee home to 
change, without pay. Violation of this policy by an employee may result in disciplinary action. 

While no professional dress policy can be all encompassing, for purposes of guidance, the 
following are examples of inappropriate dress: 

• Bib overalls;



34 

• Undershirts, tank tops, halter tops, midriff or tube tops;

• Clothing that is torn or has holes, sweatsuits or athletic apparel;

• Flip flops or slippers.

Hair is to be clean, combed, and neatly trimmed. Sideburns, mustaches, and beards should also be 
clean and neatly trimmed. 

6.08  Telephone Usage 

To assure effective telephone communications, employees should always speak in a courteous and 
professional manner. Please confirm information received from the caller and hang up only after 
the caller has done so. 

Use of City telephones for personal calls, including local calls, is to be kept to a minimum. 
Employees may not utilize City telephones so as to incur any charges which are charged to the 
City. Personal calls made on personal cell phones should be made during breaks or meal periods. 

6.09  Smoking 

In keeping with state law and the City’s intent to provide a safe and healthful work environment, 
smoking is prohibited while on duty and is prohibited throughout the workplace, including City 
vehicles. 

On breaks, smoking is permitted outside of buildings in areas where the smoke will not enter 
buildings. 

6.10  Conflict of Interest 

Employees have an obligation to conduct business within guidelines that prohibit actual and 
potential conflicts of interest, or even the appearance of conflict of interest. 

An actual or potential conflict of interest occurs when an employee is in a position to influence a 
decision that may result in a personal gain for that employee or for a relative as a result of the 
City’s business dealings. For the purposes of this policy, a relative is defined to include the 
employee’s spouse, children, parents, siblings, grandparents, aunts, uncles, nieces, and nephews 
whether by blood or marriage. 

No “presumption of guilt” is created by the mere existence of a relationship with outside firms. 
However, if an employee has any influence on transactions involving purchases, contracts, or 
leases, it is imperative that he/she discloses to the City Manager as soon as possible the existence 
of any actual or potential conflict of interest so that safeguards can be established to protect all 
parties. 

Personal gain may result not only in cases where the employee or relative has a significant 
ownership in a firm with which the city does business, but also when an employee or relative 



35 

receives any kickback, bribe, gift, or special consideration as a result of any transaction or business 
dealings involving the city. 

Upon assuming their respective positions with the City and annually thereafter, all designated 
employees of the City must execute the Conflicts of Interest Disclosure Statement required by the 
Fair Political Practices Commission, as it may be amended from time to time and must agree to be 
bound by its provisions. 

City employees are prohibited from threatening or discriminating against consultants or 
contractors for arbitrary or capricious reasons, or personal gain. 

State law establishes separate and distinct policies regarding the prohibition of certain defined 
conflicts of interest, as well as the disclosure of income, assets, and business position. It is the 
employee’s responsibility to comply with these laws and policies and to contact Human Resources 
regarding these requirements. 

6.11  Confidential Information 

The materials, products, designs, plans, ideas, and data of the City are the property of the City and 
should never be given to an outside firm or individual except through normal channels and with 
appropriate authorization. Any improper transfer of material or disclosure of information, even 
though it is not apparent that an employee has personally gained by such action, constitutes 
unacceptable conduct. 

Employees shall not disclose any confidential information, including without limitation, billing 
records or other personal data regarding a member of the public, personnel records of the City, or 
information regarding actual or potential claims and litigation against the City. 

Any employee who participates in any practice prohibited by this section will be subject to 
disciplinary action, up to and including possible discharge from employment. 

6.12  Use of City Equipment and Vehicles 

Equipment and vehicles essential in accomplishing job responsibilities are expensive and may be 
difficult to replace. When using City property, employees are expected to exercise care, ensure 
that the equipment is maintained, and follow all operating instructions, safety standards, and 
guidelines. 

Please notify your supervisor if any equipment, machine, tool, or vehicle appears to be damaged, 
defective, or in need of repair. Prompt reporting of damage, defects, and the need for repairs could 
prevent deterioration of equipment and possible injury to employees and others. 

Personal use of City property is prohibited. Any City equipment or property assigned to an 
employee must be returned immediately upon the City’s demand and at its sole discretion. The 
improper, careless, negligent, destructive, or unsafe use or operation of equipment or vehicles, as 
well as excessive or avoidable traffic and parking violations may result in disciplinary action, 
including termination of employment. 



36 

All City employees driving a City owned vehicle or a privately owned vehicle in the conduct of 
City business must have a valid unexpired California driver’s license and appropriate insurance 
coverage. 

It is the employee’s responsibility to report immediately incidents resulting in the loss or 
suspension of the employee’s driver’s license to Human Resources. An employee for whom 
driving is an essential job function and who loses the employee’s driver’s license, is convicted of, 
or pleaded no contest to, or entered into a diversion program to avoid conviction of reckless driving 
or driving under the influence of alcohol or drugs, or becomes uninsurable as a driver, may be 
terminated. 

When traveling on City business, all employees shall use safety belts and observe all traffic laws. 
The City shall not assume financial responsibility for traffic citations received by employees 
driving either City owned vehicles or privately owned vehicles on City business. 

Employees who are assigned a City owned vehicle are responsible for attending to routine 
maintenance including, but not limited to, gas and tires. 

6.13  Changes In Employee’s Personal Information 

All employees are required to notify the Human Resources office of changes in their personal 
information. Notification of changes of address, telephone number, marital status, number of 
dependents, insurance beneficiaries, educational accomplishments, or emergency information 
should be submitted as soon as possible in order to keep payroll, insurance, benefits, and personal 
information accurate and as up-to-date as possible. 

SECTION 7. GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES 

7.01  Mileage Reimbursement 

An employee will be reimbursed for mileage incurred while driving the employee’s personal car 
on City business. This reimbursement does not include traveling between home and work unless 
the employee is responding to an after hours “on-call” message or is otherwise approved by the 
City Manager. 

Current reimbursement rates may be obtained from Human Resources. 

7.02  Expense Reimbursement 

City employees will be reimbursed for necessary business expenses directly related to authorized 
activity of the organization. 

Employees are to receive prior authorization from the appropriate supervisory personnel before 
incurring any reimbursable expense. Unauthorized or inappropriate expenditures by employees 
will not be reimbursed by the City. Receipts will be required for reimbursements. 



37 

7.03  Personal Property 

Employees are advised not to bring personal property with them to the workplace or with them 
while conducting City business, as the City assumes no responsibility for such personal property 
and will not reimburse employees for damages or loss of employee’s personal property. 

7.04  Media Contact 

Employees shall refer all media requests to the City Manager. Employees are not permitted to 
communicate with the media on the City’s behalf unless they have received specific, prior 
authorization by the City Council or City Manager. 

7.05  Credit Card(s) and Credit Accounts 

Employees may not utilize City credit cards or credit accounts without the prior consent of the 
City Manager. 

SECTION 8. SEPARATIONS 

8.01  Separations from Employment 

There will be times when the employment relationship will be terminated, whether by the City, 
the employee, or by mutual agreement. Although advance notice is not required, the City requests 
that employees who are resigning voluntarily provide at least two weeks written notice of 
resignation from all employees.  Again, this is not required.   

8.02  Return of City Property 

Employees are responsible for all City property, materials, or written information issued to them 
or in their possession or control. Employees must return all City property that is in their possession 
or control in the event of separation of employment or immediately upon request. 

8.03  Exit Interview 

Human Resources will generally schedule an Exit Interview with each employee who leaves the 
City regardless of the reason. This interview allows employees to communicate their views on 
their work with the City and the job requirements, operations, and training needs. It also provides 
the employee an opportunity to discuss such issues as employee benefits, COBRA medical 
benefits and repayment of any outstanding debts to the City. 



38 

CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
AT-WILL STATEMENT AND EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

A. At-Will Statement

All City employees serve at the discretion of the City Manager.  Accordingly, employment by the City 
is employment “At-Will.”  Except for the City Manager, no manager, supervisor, client, or 
representative of the City has any authority to enter into any agreement for employment for any 
specific period of time or to make any agreement for employment other than “At-Will.” 

Employment with the City is also by mutual consent.  The City reserves and retains the right to 
terminate any employment relationship with any employee, at any time, for any reason, or no reason, 
with or without notice.  The employee also retains the right to terminate the employee’s employment 
at any time, for any reason, or no reason, with or without notice 

This manual is not a contract of employment and is subject to change.  It may be revoked, altered, 
amended, or modified at any time by the Plymouth City Council. 

B. Acknowledgment

This is to acknowledge that I have received a copy of the City’s Personnel Manual.  I understand that 
it contains important information on the City’s general personnel policies and on my privileges and 
obligations as an employee.  I further understand that I should contact the Personnel Officer to obtain 
more comprehensive information on the City’s personnel policies. 

I understand that I am governed by its contents and that those contents may be subject to change. 
Changes to this document are implemented at the sole and absolute discretion of the Plymouth City 
Council and may occur with or without prior notification.  I further understand that my employment 
with the City is for a no fixed term and is by mutual consent.  Consequently, either the City or I may 
terminate the employment relationship at will, at any time, for any reason, or for no reason, with or 
without prior notice. 

__________________________________ 
Employee’s Name 

__________________________________     ___________________________________ 
Employee Signature                                         Date 

Employee Copy - Please sign and keep with your Personnel Manual 



39 

CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
AT-WILL STATEMENT AND EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

A. At-Will Statement

All City employees serve at the discretion of the City Manager.  Accordingly, employment by the City 
is employment “At-Will.”  No manager, supervisor, client, or representative of the City has any 
authority to enter into any agreement for employment for any specific period of time or to make any 
agreement for employment other than “At-Will.” 

Employment with the City is also by mutual consent.  The City reserves and retains the right to 
terminate any employment relationship with any employee, at any time, for any reason, or no reason, 
with or without notice.  The employee also retains the right to terminate the employee’s employment 
at any time, for any reason, or no reason, with or without notice 

This manual is not a contract of employment and is subject to change.  It may be revoked, altered, 
amended, or modified at any time by the Plymouth City Council. 

B. Acknowledgment

This is to acknowledge that I have received a copy of the City’s Personnel Manual.  I understand that 
it contains important information on the City’s general personnel policies and on my privileges and 
obligations as an employee.  I further understand that I should contact the Personnel Officer to obtain 
more comprehensive information on the City’s personnel policies. 

I understand that I am governed by its contents and that those contents may be subject to change. 
Changes to this document are implemented at the sole and absolute discretion of the Plymouth City 
Council and may occur with or without prior notification.  I further understand that my employment 
with the City is for a no fixed term and is by mutual consent.  Consequently, either the City or I may 
terminate the employment relationship at will, at any time, for any reason, or for no reason, with or 
without prior notice. 

__________________________________ 
Employee’s Name 

__________________________________     ___________________________________ 
Employee Signature                                         Date 

Please sign this document and return to the Personnel Officer 



EXCERPT FROM CITY OF PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL CODE 

§ 2.08.090 Authority over employees.

It shall be the duty of the City Manager, and the City Manager shall have the authority to 
manage, supervise, and give directions to all heads of departments under the City Manager's 
jurisdiction and, through their department heads, to subordinate officers and employees. The City 
Manager shall be responsible for, supervise, and direct, the functioning of all City departments, 
personnel, and consultants, other than the City Clerk, City Treasurer, and City Attorney. The City 
Manager shall be responsible for the evaluation of employees, including granting of step 
increases in salary. The City Manager shall be responsible for the appointment, removal, 
promotion, discipline, evaluation, or demotion of all other City employees and/or may authorize 
department heads to appoint, remove, promote, discipline, evaluate, or demote employees, in 
accordance with the Personnel Rules of the City. 





7.5 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.5 
12/11/2025 

SUBJECT:  Approval of Continued Bulk Water Service for Moorefield 
Construction Through April 15, 2026 

DEPARTMENT: City Manager’s Office 

STAFF:  Interim City Manager Cameron Begbie 

TITLE 

AUTHORIZATION TO CONTINUE BULK WATER SUPPLY FOR MOOREFIELD 
CONSTRUCTION FOR THE ACORN RIDGE CASINO PROJECT 

BACKGROUND 

At the special meeting held on November 26, 2025, the City Council authorized the 
temporary reconnection of the hydrant-mounted construction water meter for 
Moorefield Construction, allowing service only until this meeting. Staff reinstalled the 
meter in accordance with that direction. Moorefield Construction now requests 
continued access to bulk water through April 15, 2026, at the previously approved 
rate of $100 per 4,000 gallons. 
Moorefield Construction, Inc. is constructing the Acorn Ridge Casino at 17500 CA-49 
in unincorporated Amador County, a major regional development that requires 
substantial quantities of construction water for dust control, compaction, concrete 
production, and other critical activities. Moorefield originally submitted a Fire Hydrant 
Meter Rental Application on February 26, 2025, seeking water service through May 
1, 2025. The application was processed, a $3,577.25 deposit was received, and the 
City issued a construction water meter. Moorefield began drawing water from the 
Village Drive hydrant and was billed at the established rate of $100 per 4,000 gallons 
along with a $30 monthly rental fee. 
In November 2025, staff discovered that Moorefield’s encroachment permit for Village 
Drive had expired in July and that the meter rental period had extended beyond the 
date listed on the original application. Service was disconnected, and Moorefield was 
notified. By November 25, 2025, all outstanding invoices were paid, and the company 
requested reinstatement. The City Council subsequently authorized a temporary 
reconnection at the November 26, 2025 meeting. 
Since that time, Moorefield has remained fully current on all payments and has 
complied with all City requirements. The company continues to demonstrate a 
legitimate and ongoing need for construction water as work on the Acorn Ridge 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.5 
12/11/2025 

Casino progresses. Continued access to bulk water supports timely advancement of 
a significant regional project while generating consistent revenue for the City’s water 
enterprise fund. This arrangement does not negatively impact local water customers 
or supply reliability, and the City maintains full oversight over metering, billing, and 
compliance. 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION 

As the City did not have any approval authority over the Acorn Ridge Casino, the City 
did not study the environmental impacts of the project. Instead, the environmental 
impacts of the Acorn Ridge Casino project were analyzed by the Ione Band of Miwok 
Indians through a Tribal Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration. 
Access to water through a construction water meter on Village Drive to the project 
site immediately adjacent to Village Drive was not specifically analyzed in the 
TIS/MND. However, staff has determined that the temporary nature of this 
connection and the limited physical impact of the connection (i.e., connecting a 
construction water meter to an existing fire hydrant and connecting a hose to that 
meter) mean the provision of water under these circumstances is exempt from 
environmental review under the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to the 
Class 4 Categorical Exemption (14 C.C.R. § 15304(e).) 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Continued rental of the hydrant meter and the sale of bulk water at $100 per 4,000 
gallons will generate ongoing revenue for the City’s water enterprise fund. Moorefield 
Construction remains current on all payments and maintains a deposit on file. No 
adverse fiscal impacts are anticipated. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council discuss and possibly authorize the continued 
use of the construction water meter by Moorefield Construction through April 15, 
2026 at the established rate of $100 per 4,000 gallons and direct the City Manager 
to execute any necessary documents required to facilitate this extension. 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

1. None



7.6 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.6 
12/11/2025 

SUBJECT:  Review of Encroachment Permit 2025-01-27 and Supplemental 
Application Submitted by Moorefield Construction 

DEPARTMENT: City Manager’s Office 

STAFF:  Interim City Manager Cameron Begbie 

TITLE 

REPORT ON ENCROACHMENT PERMIT ACTIVITY RELATED TO MOOREFIELD CONSTRUCTION 
AND THE ACORN RIDGE CASINO PROJECT 

BACKGROUND 

In January 2025, the former Public Works Director approved Encroachment Permit 
No. 2025-01-27, authorizing Moorefield Construction to relocate a City-owned fire 
hydrant and perform related work necessary for a new entrance to the Acorn Ridge 
Casino, located at 17500 CA-49 in unincorporated Amador County. Although the 
casino project lies outside City limits, the work required adjustments to City 
infrastructure, making the encroachment permit necessary. The permit covered the 
period January through July 2025, and Moorefield Construction has fully completed 
all activities authorized under that permit. 
During subsequent coordination with Moorefield Construction regarding both the 
encroachment permit and the contractor’s interest in purchasing bulk water for on-
site construction needs, the contractor submitted a second encroachment permit 
application. This additional application was submitted proactively to ensure proper 
authorization in case an encroachment became necessary to facilitate bulk-water 
access. Importantly, the application does not request or allow any additional 
construction, modifications, or new work beyond what was already approved and 
completed under Encroachment Permit 2025-01-27. At this time, staff has 
determined that no new encroachment is required, and therefore the supplemental 
application has not been issued as a new permit. 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION 

Please include any information related to CEQA/NEPA.  If you are unsure if 
CEQA/NEPA is required for your agenda item, please consult the City Attorney’s office 
and/or City Planning Department.    



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.6 
12/11/2025 

FISCAL IMPACT 

There is no fiscal impact associated with this report. Any future encroachment 
requests would be subject to standard application fees, inspection costs, and cost 
recovery for staff time as applicable. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council receive and file this report regarding the 
status of Encroachment Permit 2025-01-27 and the supplemental application 
submitted by Moorefield Construction, and authorize approval of the additional 
encroachment permit for administrative purposes only, should the Council determine 
that such approval would support clear documentation and continuity of project 
records. 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

1. Moorefield Construction Encroachment Permit 2025-01-27
2. Moorefield Construction Permit Application















7.7 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.7 
12/11/2025 

1 of 2 

SUBJECT:  Community Facilities District No. 2016-01        
Zinfandel Services District) – Ditch Repair Project

DEPARTMENT:   City Engineer 

STAFF:  Frank Whitmore, City Engineer 

TITLE 

RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD FOR ZINFANDEL SERVICES DISTRICT – 
DITCH REPAIR PROJECT 

BACKGROUND 

City Staff met with representatives from Zinfandel Ridge on October 26, 2025, 
regarding ditch repair to various sections of roadside ditches within the Zinfandel 
Ridge subdivision.   

Project plans/specifications were prepared that included removing sediment from the 
roadside ditches and lining them with angular rip rap (Base Bid Project).  An additive 
alternate was requested by the Zinfandel Ridge representatives for substituting out 
the angular rip rap with rounded cobble.   

The project was advertised for bids on November 7, 2025, a mandatory pre-bid 
conference was held on November 18, 2025, and the bid opening was held on 
December 2, 2025.  The City received 3 bids as listed below.  

 Contractor       Base Bid       Additive Alternate 

RD Morgan Construction $24,850.00 $34,500.00 

Phase One Construction $46,330.00 $ 6,000.00 

Shenandoah Excavating $46,391.00 $ 6,500.00 

Due to RD Morgan Construction’s bid price differences between Phase One 
Construction and Shenandoah Excavating, the City Engineer spoke with each of the 
bidders.  RD Morgan Construction informed us that his Base Bid price was just to 
clean out the existing ditches, and no angular rip rap or rounded cobble was 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.7 
12/11/2025 

2 of 2 

included.  RD Morgan Construction also thought the additive alternate was for 
adding the cobble rock after cleaning out the ditch.  Phase One Construction and 
Shenandoah Excavating bid the project as intended.  

There are a few options the City has as noted below: 

1. Declare the low bidder as unresponsive and award the Base Bid to the 2nd low
bidder (Phase One Construction).   Total Cost is $46,330.

2. Option #1 but include additive alternate work (rounded cobble rock instead
of angular rip rap).  Total Cost is $52,330

3. Reject all 3 bids and re-bid project.  The City Engineer does not anticipate
lower bids with this option.

FISCAL IMPACT 

Funding for this project would be from the Community Facilities District No. 2016-01 
(Zinfandel Services District).  

RECOMMENDATION 

After discussion with representatives from Zinfandel Ridge, it is recommended the 
project be awarded to the second lowest bidder, Phase One Construction for 
$46,330.00 for the Base Bid only. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Bid Summary
2. Resolution 2025-24



$/U
N

IT
TO

TAL
$/U

N
IT

TO
TAL

$/U
N

IT
TO

TAL
$/U

N
IT

TO
TAL

1
M

obilization
LS

1
$5,000.00

$5,000.00
$3,000.00

$3,000.00
$5,000.00

$5,000.00
$1,000.00

$1,000.00
2

Locate and Protect Existing U
tilities

LS
1

$2,000.00
$2,000.00

$1,000.00
$1,000.00

$1,800.00
$1,800.00

$2,000.00
$2,000.00

3
D

itch R
estoration (Location #1) 

LF
126

$90.00
$11,340.00

$30.00
$3,780.00

$55.56
$7,000.00

$95.00
$11,970.00

4
D

itch R
estoration (Location #2)

LF
212

$90.00
$19,080.00

$30.00
$6,360.00

$51.89
$11,000.00

$61.00
$12,932.00

5
D

itch R
estoration (Location #3)

LF
237

$90.00
$21,330.00

$30.00
$7,110.00

$71.73
$17,000.00

$57.00
$13,509.00

6
Silt R

em
oval (Location #4)

LF
120

$45.00
$5,400.00

$30.00
$3,600.00

$37.75
$4,530.00

$41.50
$4,980.00

TO
TALS:

$64,150.00
$24,850.00

$46,330.00
*

$46,391.00

AD
D

ITIVE ALTER
N

ATE:

$/U
N

IT
TO

TAL
$/U

N
IT

TO
TAL

$/U
N

IT
TO

TAL
$/U

N
IT

TO
TAL

1
D

itch R
estoration w

ith river rock (Location #1)
LF

126
$10.00

$1,260.00
$60.00

$7,560.00
$11.90

$1,500.00
$14.29

$1,800.00
2

D
itch R

estoration w
ith river rock (Location #2)

LF
212

$10.00
$2,120.00

$60.00
$12,720.00

$9.43
$2,000.00

$10.85
$2,300.00

3
D

itch R
estoration w

ith river rock (Location #3)
LF

237
$10.00

$2,370.00
$60.00

$14,220.00
$10.55

$2,500.00
$10.13

$2,400.00
AD

D
ITIVE ALTER

N
ATE TO

TALS:
$5,750.00

$34,500.00
$6,000.00

$6,500.00

B
ASE AN

D
 AD

D
ITIVE ALTER

N
ATE TO

TALS: 
$69,900.00

$59,350.00
$52,330.00

$52,891.00

*
Shenandoah Excavating - M

athem
atical Error

Actual: $46,391
As Subm

itted: $43,391

C
ITY O

F PLYM
O

U
TH

C
O

M
M

U
N

ITY FAC
ILITIES D

ISTR
IC

T N
O

. 2016-01 (ZIN
FAN

D
EL SER

VIC
ES D

ISTR
IC

T) 

B
ID

 SU
M

M
AR

Y
B

ID
 O

PEN
IN

G
:  D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2, 2025 at 10:00 A.M
.

ITEM
D

ESC
R

IPTIO
N

U
N

ITS

D
ITC

H
 R

EPAIR
 PR

O
JEC

T

R
D

 M
O

R
G

AN
 C

O
N

STR
U

C
TIO

N
SH

EN
AN

D
O

AH
 EXC

AVATIN
G

PH
ASE O

N
E C

O
N

STR
U

C
TIO

N

Q
TY

R
D

 M
O

R
G

AN
 C

O
N

STR
U

C
TIO

N
SH

EN
AN

D
O

AH
 EXC

AVATIN
G

EN
G

IN
EER

'S ESTIM
ATE

PH
ASE O

N
E C

O
N

STR
U

C
TIO

N

ITEM
D

ESC
R

IPTIO
N

U
N

ITS
Q

TY
EN

G
IN

EER
'S ESTIM

ATE



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-24 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PLYMOUTH 

AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONSTRUCTION 
AGREEMENT FOR THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2016-01 
(ZINFANDEL RIDGE SERVICES DISTRICT) – DITCH REPAIR PROJECT  

WHEREAS, the City of Plymouth advertised for bids for the Ditch Repair Project on 
November 7, 2025; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Plymouth conducted the bid opening for the Ditch Repair Project 
at 10:00 a.m. on December 2, 2025; and  

WHEREAS, the City received three bids for the project; and 

Contractor Base Bid Amount Additive Alternate 
Bid Amount 

RD Morgan Construction $24,850 $34,500 
Phase One Construction $46,330 $6,000 
Shenandoah Excavating $46,391 $6,500 

WHEREAS, there were discrepancies noted during the bid review from the lowest 
bidder, RD Morgan Construction; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council hereby award the 
Construction Contract for the Community Facilities District No. 2016-01 (Zinfandel Ridge 
Services District) to Phase One Construction, and the Interim City Manager is hereby authorized 
to execute a Construction Agreement with Phase One Construction in the amount of 
$46,330.00.  

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION was duly introduced and passed at a meeting of the 
City Council of the City of Plymouth held on the 11th day of December, 2025 by the following 
vote:  

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

Wendy Cranford, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Victoria McHenry, City Clerk 



7.8





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.8 

12/11/2025 

SUBJECT: City Council Reorganization- Selection of Mayor and Vice 

Mayor 

DEPARTMENT: City Manager's Office 

STAFF: Cameron Begbie, City Manager 

Victoria McHenry, City Clerk 

TITLE 

CITY COUNCIL REORGANIZATION - SELECTION OF MAYOR AND VICE 

MAYOR 

BACKGROUND 

Council Re-Organization, select the new Mayor and Vice Mayor. 

Every year there is a selection of Mayor and Vice Mayor among the Council 

Members. 

Duties of the Mayor include: 

l. The Mayor, as chairperson, presides over the regular and special

meetings of the Council.

a) Keeps the discussion focused on the issues.

b) Prevents overly dominating members from having a

disproportionate influence.

c) Solicits opin1ons, feelings, and positions from reticent

members.

d) Discourages finger pointing and blame-oriented statements or

questions.

e) Protects colleagues and staff from verbal attacks.

f) Encourages the generation of alternative solutions.

g) Protects new thoughts from being rejected prior to

consideration.

h) Delays evaluation and analysis of alternatives until all are on

the table.



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.8 

12/11/2025 
i) Facilitates the meeting and does not let the elected body drift

off topic.
j) Guides the process of screening alternatives and selecting a

solution.
k) Attempts to build consensus among members during the

meetings only.
The Mayor has the authority to call special Council meetings. 

2. The Mayor is required to sign all ordinances, resolutions and
proclamations.

3. The Mayor signs all letters from the Council.
4. The Mayor represents the City at Civic and Community functions such

as:
a) Purple Heart Ceremony, Harvest Festival, Christmas Market
b) League of California City Division Meetings

The Vice Mayor assumes the duties of the Mayor when the Mayor is not 
available. 

The City Clerk is the elections officer for the City, holds the selection for the 
Mayor. The process includes the following: 

The City Clerk declares that the nominations are open for the office of 
Mayor. The Deputy City Clerk accepts nomination(s) from the Council 
Members. You may nominate more than one person for a position, and 
you may nominate yourself for a position. When there are no further 
nomination(s), the City Clerk will close the nominations and take a roll 
call vote. If there is more than one nomination, a vote will be taken in 
order of nomination. You may vote for more than one person for the 
position. The Mayor is selected by a majority vote, three (3) votes; if a 
tie occurs there will be a runoff vote. If more than one person is 
nominated and during the roll call vote the first nomination receives the 
majority vote the election is complete. Following the vote(s), the City 
Clerk declares that the Mayor is elected. 

Once the newly selected Mayor is seated, the Mayor holds the selection of the 
Vice Mayor in the manner as outlined for Mayor. 



There is no fiscal impact. 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.8 

12/11/2025 

Staff recommends proceed with selection of the Mayor and Vice Mayor. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

FISCAL IMPACT 





CLOSED 
SESSION

10.1
























	7.7 Award Staff Report_2025-12-08.pdf
	Title
	BACKGROUND
	fiscal impact
	RECOMMENDATION
	attachments

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	2025-12-02 Ditch Repair Project - Bid Tabulation.pdf
	overall

	12.11.2025 CC Regular Meeting Agenda AMENDED (2).pdf
	LEVINE ACT PUBLIC PARTY/APPLICANT DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS:
	ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
	CERTIFICATION OF POSTING OF AGENDA




